
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2020  
 
(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Large Conference Room) 
 
NC Gov. Cooper’s Executive Order 176 restricts mass gatherings due to COVID-19; therefore, public attendance 
of the Work Session and Council Meeting is restricted to those who are on the agenda or who would like to 
speak during the Public Hearing.  If you are speaking at the meeting, please enter the City Hall Addition front 
entrance and maintain social distance while waiting to enter the Large Conference Room one at a time.  The 
meeting will be streamed live on the City's Facebook and YouTube pages at 
https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-minutes/ and broadcast on the Downtown 
Center Street speakers.   
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
a. Boards and Commissions Discussion 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
b. LGC and NCHFA Letter  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
Invocation (Bishop Alton A. Smith, St. Mark Church of Christ, Disciples of Christ) 
Pledge of Allegiance  

 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A.  Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 2, 2020  

 
V. PRESENTATIONS 

B.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Kathy Hill as an Employee of the City of 
Goldsboro for More Than 34 years 

C.  Government Experience Award Recognition  
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS (*Motion/Second) 
**When a public body conducts a public hearing at a remote meeting that falls under G.S. 166A-19.24, it is required that 
they allow for written comments on the subject of the public hearing to be submitted up to 24 hours after the public 
hearing before taking action thereon. 
D. Z-9-20 Chestley Taylor - Southwest corner of E. US 70 Hwy. and Carriage Road (Planning) 
E. Z-10-20 Wayne Oil Company, Inc. - Northwest corner of Wayne Memorial and Fourth Street (Planning)  
PLANNING COMMISSION EXCUSED  
F. Public Hearing and Approval in Principle of Proposed Issuance of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 

by the Burlington Housing Authority (Assistant City Manager) 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
G. Approval of a Resolution Giving Preliminary Approval to Issuance of Multifamily Housing Revenue 

Bonds for the Grand at Day Point Apartments (Assistant City Manager) 
H. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 

Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101) (Finance) 

https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-minutes/


2 

I. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 422 Wilson Street 
from Sergio Sanchez (Finance)  

J. Accept Final Upset Bids for 619 and 621 Slaughter Street (Finance)  
K. Acceptance of Second Wave Funding of North Carolina Tourism Promotion Recovery Grant in the 

Amount of $10,750 (Tourism) 
L. Revised Advisory Boards and Commissions Meeting Schedule-Golf Course (City Clerk) 
M. Rescheduling Council Meetings For 2021 Due To Holidays (City Clerk) 
N. Departmental Monthly Reports  

 
VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 

O. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act 
Miscellaneous Grants Special Revenue Fund (R1106) – Second Reading (Finance)  

P. Z-8-20 – Jones Sawmill-Northwest corner of Belfast Road & I-795-Second Reading (Planning) 
Q. CU-6-20 Site Plan (Jones Sawmill)(Planning) 
 

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

X. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
R. Small Business Saturday Proclamation  
 

XI. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XII. ADJOURN 
 



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD 
NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the 
Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on November 
2, 2020 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, seconded by 
Councilmember Ham and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

Council Meeting Dates for 2021.  Ms. Melissa Capps, City Clerk, stated included in 
your packets is a copy of the proposed meeting dates for 2021.  Council normally meets on the 
1st and 3rd Monday of each month.  The proposed calendar includes changes due to holidays, 
which include: 

• Tuesday, January 19 (Monday, January 18th is a holiday – Martin Luther King, Jr. Day)
• Monday, July 12
• Tuesday, September 7 (Monday, September 6th is a holiday – Labor Day)

Proposed Retreat Dates 2021 
• February 8 and 9 (Monday and Tuesday)
• February 24 and 25 (Wednesday and Thursday)

Ms. Capps asked Council to please take a look at their calendars to see if there are any conflicts.  
Staff will bring back an item at the next meeting for Council to adopt the 2021 Meeting 
Schedule. 

Boards and Commissions Vacancies.  Ms. Capps stated included in your folders is a 
listing of current board and commission members with the district that they live in; a listing of 
those members whose terms are expiring and copies of applications received to date.  We ask 
that Council review the information and discuss recommendations for appointments at an 
upcoming Council meeting with Council adopting a Resolution appointing members at the 
December 21st council meeting.  

Council discussed the proposed race relations commission, such as a name for the committee, 
mission, etc.  Councilmember Matthews stated I still disagree that this should be a council lead 
board.  Council continued discussions; consensus was to bring back the boards and commission 
vacancies to the next meeting and to continue to discuss the race relations commission.  

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item on the Consent Agenda was reviewed.  Additional 
discussion included: 

Item D. Z-6-20 Capps Enterprises of Greenville – East Ash Street between N. 
Durant Street and Ridgewood Drive.  Mayor Allen stated I have been at the Lantern Inn 20 
something years, we have done this one time before.  They did that to get an ABC permit and I 
do not want them to do the same, they would be out in the parking lot at 2:00 am drinking and 

Item A



2 
 
 
 

throwing everything in the parking lot.  Ms. Collins stated if you recall the applicant has an 
existing tenant that did come to the public hearing, if you rezone tonight, it is a permitted use but 
it would come back to Council for a conditional use permit.  Ms. Collins shared information 
regarding rezoning, conditional use permits and ABC permits.  Councilmember Williams stated I 
do not think it is fair to judge this individual on someone else’s behavior in the past. 
 
 Item E. Z-7-20 Wayne Oil Company, Inc. – Northwest Corner of Wayne Memorial 
Drive and Fourth Street.  Councilmember Williams asked about notification of surrounding 
properties and the site plan.  Ms. Collins stated we are in the process of notification and provided 
information regarding the review of the site plan and the need for DOT review as Wayne 
Memorial Drive is maintained by DOT. 
 
 Mayor Allen made a motion to move Item D. Z-6-20 Capps Enterprises of Greenville – 
East Ash Street between N. Durant Street and Ridgewood Drive from the Consent Agenda to 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Aycock.  
Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, Councilmembers Ham and Aycock voted in favor of 
the motion.  Councilmembers Williams, Polack and Matthews voted against the motion.  The 
motion passed 4:3. 
 
 Upon motion of Councilmember Williams, seconded by Councilmember Matthews and 
unanimously carried, Council removed Item E. Wayne Oil Company, Inc. – Northwest Corner of 
Wayne Memorial Drive and Fourth Street from the Consent Agenda and placed it under Items 
Requiring Individual Action. 
 
 Item G. CU-6-20 Site Plan (Jones Sawmill).  Councilmember Polack expressed 
concerns regarding the width of Belfast Road.  Ms. Collins shared DOT provided the following 
comments; driveway permits are required, however, at this time, due to the scale of the 
operation, there are no other road improvements necessary at this time.   
 
 Item H. Fire Department Budget Adjustments. Chief Dixon presented information 
regarding a request to use savings realized through the reorganization initiative.  The Goldsboro 
Fire Department Reorganization initiative was approved by City Council at the November 5, 
2018 session. The savings and adjustments to organizational cultural are being realized as 
projected. The savings were to be reinvested in the department for pay for certification.  The 
annual cost of training replacements for employees lost to surrounding agencies is estimated at 
over One Hundred Thousand dollars.  Funds are available within the FIRE/5120 budget line as a 
result of ongoing cost saving initiatives implemented by the department.  The City Council is 
responsible for approving personnel policies, the position classification and pay plan, and 
making changes to policies and benefits. 
 
Councilmember Polack stated I brought this up at the retreat.  I think this is a great way to retain 
and recruit people.  I am in support of the Resolution. 
 
Chief Dixon shared in 3 years we have loss about 15 people.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway expressed concerns regarding the budget and total revenue at the end 
of the year.   
 
Councilmember Williams stated Chief you said the money has already been allocated, right.  
Chief Dixon stated yes sir. Council and Chief Dixon discussed budgeted amounts, retirement of 
staff and over-time reductions. 
 
Councilmember Polack made a motion to adopt the resolution to establish pay for certifications 
for Goldsboro Fire Department employees.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Williams.   
 
Mr. Salmon stated I appreciate what the Chief is doing here for his people at the Fire 
Department, however, at this time, I do not support the resolutions in front of you, $50,000 for 
this and $10,000 for the 1919 fire truck for the exact reason Councilmember Broadaway brought 
up.  COVID-19 has significantly affected local governments.  Mr. Salmon shared information 



3 
 
 
 

regarding anticipated shortfalls in sales tax and the overall budget.  There is no cost of living 
increase, no pay for performance and no holiday bonus.   
 
Discussions continued regarding the 1919 fire truck and pay for certifications. 
 
Mayor Allen called for a vote on the motion to adopt the resolution to establish pay for 
certifications for Goldsboro Fire Department employees.  Mayor Allen, Councilmembers 
Williams, Polack, Matthews, Ham and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Broadaway voted against the motion.  Motion passed 6:1. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 72 “RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH “PAY FOR 
CERTIFICATION” FOR GOLDSBORO FIRE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES” 

 
Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by 

Councilmember Polack, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss a personnel matter and 
a litigation matter.  
 
Council came out of closed session. 
 
 The meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in 
Large Conference Room, City Hall Annex, 200 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on November 
2, 2020 with attendance as follows: 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 
   Councilmember Antonio Williams 
   Councilmember Taj Polack 
   Councilmember Brandi Matthews 

Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

  
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Councilmember Williams provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, seconded by 

Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, Council approved the Minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of October 19, 2020. 

 
Employee Performance Award.  Employee of the Quarter – Jamie Metz.  As a 

Computer Systems Administrator II in the Information Technology Department, Jamie 
significantly exceeded expectations by completing the additional duties of department finance 
obligations and administrative work while conducting her Computer System Administrator 
duties in an exemplary manner. Most importantly, she assisted with the fiscal year FY20-21 
budget preparation and FY19-20 year end closeout that led to an increase in department funding 
to address the ever increasing IT needs of every City department.  Additionally, during this 
period, Jamie worked diligently on her professional development achieving her Associates in 
Applied Science - Information Technology, IT Business Support. She also received a number of 
support and office system certificates to include: MS Office Specialist in Excel and Access, 
CompTIA Network+, and Fiber Optic Basics. She is awaiting the following certificates: 
CompTIA A+ Fundamentals, IT Business Support, Database Support, Hardware/Software 
Support, Operating Systems Support, Systems & Hardware, and Windows Operating Systems. 
Jamie’s exceptional dedication to the City, professionalism, and focus on internal customers—
the City staff—is highly commendable. She is often overloaded with tasks and at times 
overworked, working extensive hours during the week and on weekends, but she always 
approaches her work with a smile, positive attitude, and competence that has made the IT 



4 
 
 
 

department and other City departments better. Jamie Metz accomplishments reflect well on 
herself and the City of Goldsboro. 

 
 Public Comment Period.  Mayor Allen opened the Public Comment Period and the 
following people spoke: 
 

1. Gerald Whisenhunt shared concerns regarding homeless people on Royall Avenue. 
2. Tiffany Kilgore with the Wayne County Association of Education shared information 

regarding Goldsboro Meals on Bus Wheels. 
3. Richard Taylor shared concerns regarding boarded up houses on Deveraux Street.  He 

also shared concerns regarding Senator Harris’ visit. 
4. Jamie Taylor shared concerns regarding prostitution along the 700 Block of Walnut 

Street. 
5. Thomas Rice with MLFL shared information regarding a homeless shelter project. 
6. A gentleman shared concerns regarding log trucks on Salem Church Road and Belfast 

Road.  
 
Attorney Lawrence stated technically the information presented, because the public 
hearing has already been held, should not be considered.  
 

7. Kaylon Williams shared information regarding a history project he is working on with 
Marty at the Library.  He also shared concerns regarding the discussion of the firefighters 
at the work session, public comment period, homeless issue and COVID. 

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed. 
 

Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager, Timothy Salmon, 
presented the Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted 
simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any 
item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately.  In 
that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and 
roll call vote.  Mayor Allen reminded Council Item D. Z-6-20 Capps Enterprises of Greenville – 
East Ash Street between N. Durant Street and Ridgewood Drive and Item E. Wayne Oil 
Company, Inc. – Northwest Corner of Wayne Memorial Drive and Fourth Street were removed 
from the Consent Agenda and placed under Items Requiring Individual Action.  
 
Councilmember Matthews asked Items F and G are the sawmill correct; and according to 
Jennifer, even if we approve they still have to go back to the Planning Commission to do the 
modifications as well as honor DOT and then it will come back.  Mayor Allen stated correct.  
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated as I understand that would be after DOT shows us their plan. 
 
Councilmember Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items C, F and G be approved 
as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Ham and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.   
 
Ms. Jennifer Collins stated she was asking if it was going to come back to Council and it will 
not.  Mayor Allen stated I thought you said the DOT stuff would come back.  Ms. Collins stated 
DOT would reevaluate the need for road improvements in one year, for now there is no road 
improvements.   
 
Councilmember Williams asked Ms. Collins if Item E would be coming back.  Ms. Collins stated 
that is Wayne Oil, that is the one the applicant is asking for denial without prejudice and will 
come back before the board for a rezoning request. 
 
Mayor Allen stated with the sawmill, you are saying it would not come back for a year.  Ms. 
Collins stated it would not come back to Council if approved tonight it would be allowed to 
operate.  It would come back to staff for grading, in a year we would make sure the landscaping 
and fencing is installed and DOT would reevaluate the road in a year. 
 
Councilmember Matthews stated I cannot in good conscious say yes to the plan as presented.  
Councilmember Matthews stated I want to change my vote.  Councilmember Polack stated I 



5 
 
 
 

want to change my vote.  Councilmember Williams stated I would like to amend my vote as 
well.   
 
Mayor Allen asked if anyone else would like to change their vote, no one else responded. 
 
Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, Councilmembers Ham and Aycock voted in favor of 
approving the consent agenda.  Councilmembers Williams, Polack and Matthews voted against 
the motion.  The motion passed 4:3.  Although the motion passed, pursuant to NCGS §160A-75 
– “no ordinance nor any action having the effect of any ordinance may be finally adopted on the 
date on which it is introduced except by an affirmative vote equal to or greater than two thirds of 
all the actual membership of the council, excluding vacant seats and not including the mayor 
unless the mayor has the right to vote on all questions before the council. For purposes of this 
section, an ordinance shall be deemed to have been introduced on the date the subject matter is 
first voted on by the council” therefore the ordinances did not pass at the first reading.  *The 
result of the statute is that therefore at least five (5) must vote in favor for an ordinance to 
approved upon its first reading/vote. 
 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
 

Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act Miscellaneous Grants Special Revenue Fund (R1106).  
Resolution Adopted.  The Parks and Recreation Department applied for a remote learning grant 
from North Carolina’s Coronavirus Relief Fund administered by the North Carolina Alliance of 
YMCA’s.  The City was notified on October 15, 2020 that it was the recipient of an award in the 
amount $94,616.  The period of the performance is July 29, 2020 through December 30, 2020.  
This grant will be managed by Felicia Brown, Parks & Recreation Director. 
  
There is no match required for the grant. 
  
Staff requests that Council authorize staff to accept the award and execute the required 
documents. 
 
Federal grant requirements call for the City to establish a means of tracking the expenditures for 
Single Audit purposes so that external auditors can verify compliance with the various Federal 
and State grant guidelines in the compliance supplements.  The purpose of this project qualifies 
as a grant project under G.S. § 159-13.2, and staff requests that the Council appropriate 
expenditures in the amount of $94,616.00.  This will be funded with Federal grant revenue. 
  
Staff recommended:  
 

1. Council adopt the following entitled resolution to authorize staff to accept the award 
and execute required grant documents.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 
Ayes: 3 Nays) 

2. Council adopt a Grant Project Ordinance amendment for the Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act Miscellaneous Grants Special Revenue Fund 
(R1106) in the amount of $94,616.00. Pursuant to NCGS §160A-75, “no ordinance 
nor any action having the effect of any ordinance may be finally adopted on the date 
on which it is introduced except by an affirmative vote equal to or greater than two 
thirds of all the actual membership of the council, excluding vacant seats and not 
including the mayor unless the mayor has the right to vote on all questions before the 
council.”  Ordinance did not pass. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-71 “A RESOLULTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO TO ACCEPT A GRANT FROM NORTH CAROLINA’S CORONAVIRUS 
RELIEF FUNDS ADMINISTERED BY THE NORTH CAROLINA ALLIANCE OF YMCA’S 
AND THE YMCA OF THE TRIANGLE” 
 

Z-8-20 – Jones Sawmill-Northwest corner of Belfast Road & I-795.  The applicant 
requests to rezone subject property from Residential (R-20A) to General Industry Conditional 
District (I-2CD) in order to limit the use of the property to a commercial sawmill. 

 



6 
 
 
 

In conjunction with the rezoning request, the applicant is requesting separate site plan approval 
as required by the City’s Unified Development Ordinance.   The proposed change of zone 
request is associated with Conditional Use Permit request CU-6-20 and related site plans. 
More than half of subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  A portion of 
the subject property is located within Wayne County.  County officials have made written 
agreement to relinquish jurisdictional authority to the City of Goldsboro.  
 
Frontage:  (None)     
Area:     574,207 sq. ft., or 13.18 acres 
Zone:   Residential (R-20A)/Wayne County Airport (Overlay)    
 
Surrounding Zoning:  
North:    Residential Conditional District (R-20ACD)/County Airport; 
 
South:          Wayne County Residential-Agricultural (RA-20), 
               Wayne County Airport (Overlay); 
East:     General Business (GB)/Residential (R-16); and 
West:     Residential Conditional District (R-20ACD) 
 
The subject property is currently clear and vacant.  
 
As previously stated, the applicant desires to rezone the subject property from Residential (R-
20A) to General Industry Conditional District (I-2CD) in order to limit the use of the property to 
a commercial sawmill.   
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends a portion of the property for industrial 
development and the remaining acreage for medium density residential development.   
 
The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer are not 
available to serve the property.  Water will be provided by a private underground water well.  
Sewer will be obtained through the use of private on-site (septic) pump and waste systems in 
accordance with the Wayne County Environmental Health Department. 
 
Approximately 5.76 acres is located within Wayne Count’s Airport Overlay District.  Wayne 
County Planning and Airport officials have been advised of the applicant’s proposed rezoning 
request.  As of date, no additional comments or requirements from Wayne County have been 
communicated to City officials. 
 
At the public hearing held on October 19, 2020, the property owner and applicant were present 
however held their comments for the associated Conditional Use Permit public hearing which 
followed the rezoning request. 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on October 26, 2020, recommended approval 
for the change of zone request from Residential (R-20A) to General Industry Conditional District 
(I-2CD) in order to limit the use of the property to a commercial sawmill. 
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and: 
 

1. Find the request consistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
and;   

2. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential (R-20A) 
to General Industry Conditional District (I-2CD) in order to limit the use of the 
property to a commercial sawmill. Pursuant to NCGS §160A-75 “no ordinance nor 
any action having the effect of any ordinance may be finally adopted on the date on 
which it is introduced except by an affirmative vote equal to or greater than two 
thirds of all the actual membership of the council, excluding vacant seats and not 
including the mayor unless the mayor has the right to vote on all questions before the 
council.”  Ordinance did not pass. 

 
CU-6-20 Site Plan (Jones Sawmill).  Subject property is located on the northwest corner 

of Belfast Road and I-795.  The site plan is associated with a rezoning request Z-8-20 as 
previously presented.   



7 
 
 
 

  
If the Goldsboro City Council approves the applicant’s rezoning request from R-20A 
(Residential-20A) to General Industry Conditional District (I-2CD), the use of the property will 
be limited for the operation of a commercial sawmill.  A commercial sawmill requires a 
Conditional Use Permit when located in the General Industry (I-2) zoning district. 
 
Frontage: (None)     
Area:    574,207 sq. ft., or 13.18 acres 
Zone:  Residential (R-20A)/Wayne County (Airport Overlay) 
 
The property is currently clear and vacant.  The property is located directly east of an existing 
solar farm.  On July 6, 2015, Goldsboro City Council approved a change of zone from R-40 to 
R-20A Residential Conditional District to allow the development of the solar farm. 
 
The submitted site plan indicates four (4) commercial buildings to be utilized in the operation of 
the business.  A 15ft. x 25ft.  (375 sq. ft.) metal office building will serve as the principle 
structure in the operation of the business.  A 50ft. x 50ft. (2,500 sq. ft.) enclosed metal storage 
shelter will serve as an add-on to the principle building.  An 18ft. x 34ft.  (612 sq. ft.) 
commercial dry kiln is proposed behind the proposed storage shelter along with a proposed 20ft. 
x 60 ft. (1,200 sq. ft. ) commercial sawmill. 
 
A floor plan has been provided which consists of an office, restrooms for customers and 
employees, storage areas and three (3) automobile service bays. 
 
Hours of Operation:   Monday-Friday:   7:00am-5:00pm 
   Saturdays:    Varies 
No. of Employees:   4 
 
The applicant has proposed a new 24 ft. wide driveway cut off of Belfast Road to access the site.  
Belfast Road is an NCDOT maintained roadway.  The applicant has consulted with NCDOT and 
has been made aware of the fact that driveway permits will be required, however, no other 
roadway improvements will be necessary. 
 
The site has no frontage along Belfast Road.  As such, a proposed 50ft. ingress, egress and 
regress easement off Belfast Road will provide access to the site, as well as, to employee and 
commercial trucking parking spaces.  The applicant is proposing a 20ft. wide gravel access road 
for approximately 1,000 ft. since heavy log trucking operations will be conducted on site.  Log 
trucks will enter and exit the site off Belfast Road.  
 
Parking for the commercial sawmill requires 1 space per 2 employees on the maximum shift, 
plus 1 space for each vehicle stored on site.  A total of 4 employee parking spaces have been 
proposed including 1 handicapped accessible parking space.  According to the applicant, there 
will be no overnight parking conducted on the site. 
 
The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer are not 
available to serve the property.  Private water and on-site waste disposal systems will be 
incorporated.  Grading and drainage plans have not been submitted.  The applicant will be 
required to submit plans in accordance with City Engineering standards before construction 
permits are released. 
 
In addition to the land-use requirements of the General Industry (I-2) zoning district, the 
following supplemental regulations are required for the proposed sawmill: 
 

1. The entire area of the site shall be enclosed by a six foot high opaque fence set 
back one hundred feet from any public right of way or residentially developed or 
zoned property and/or fifty feet from any other adjacent property.  

2. The yard area between the fence and the property line, not used for parking, shall 
be planted with grass and have landscaping composed of large trees spaced not 
more than forty feet apart and not less than one row of shrubs thirty inches in 
height, spaced so that they will form a continuous visual screen six feet in height 
within three growing seasons.  



8 
 
 
 

3. No loading or unloading of materials shall occur outside of the fenced area.  
4. A statement shall be submitted with the plans indicating whether any 

manufacturing or processing operation will create smoke, offensive odor, dust, 
noise, fumes or vibrations beyond the lot lines of the proposed use. If one or more 
of such conditions exist, the developer shall explain what measures will be taken to 
mitigate such conditions to acceptable levels.  

5. The uses shall be located a minimum of one thousand feet from any residentially 
developed or zoned property. The one thousand foot separation distance shall be 
measured in a straight line from property line to property line, with no 
consideration as to intervening structures, roads or landforms. 

 
The applicant is requesting a modification of item #5 listed above as residentially-zoned and 
developed property is located within 1,000 ft. of the subject property. 
 
The applicant is requesting a waiver of the fencing and landscaping requirements for a period not 
to exceed 1 year from site plan approval. 
 
At the public hearing held on October 19, 2020, the property owner and applicant came forward 
to speak in favor of the request and no one appeared to speak against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on October 26, 2020, recommended approval of 
the Site and Landscape Plan with the requested modifications. 
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the site and landscape plan with the following modifications: 
 

1. A modification of item #5 listed above as residentially zoned and developed property 
is located within 1,000 ft. of the subject property. 

2. A waiver of the installation of fencing and landscaping requirements for a period not 
to exceed 1 year from site plan approval.  The Conditional Use Permit does not 
require a 2/3 vote; however, it is dependent on the approval of the associated 
rezoning.   

 
End of Consent Agenda. 

 
 Z-6-20 – Capps Enterprises of Greenville-East Ash Street between N. Durant Street 
and Ridgewood Drive.  Ordinance Adopted.  The applicant requests to rezone two 
commercially developed properties from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) 
zoning district. 
 
Lot #1:  2203 - 2205A E. Ash Street (Existing Shopping Center)   
Frontage:   100 ft. (E. Ash Street) 
  325 ft. (Fourth St.) 
Area:    20,274 sq. ft., or 0.46 acres 
Zone:  Neighborhood Business (NB) 
 
Lot #2:  2205B – 2207C E. Ash Street (Existing Shopping Center) 
Frontage: 100 ft. (Wayne Memorial Dr.)  
Area:    20,560 sq. ft., or 0.47 acres  
Zone:  Neighborhood Business (NB) 
Surrounding Zoning:  
North:   Residential (R-9); 
South:   Residential (R-9); 
East:   General Business (GB); and 
West:   General Business (GB)  
 
The subject properties are currently occupied by by a brick veneer, single-story commercial 
shopping center of approximately 16,670 sq.ft.  
 
As previously stated, the applicant desires to rezone the subject properties from Neighborhood 
Business (NB) to General Business (GB) zoning district.   



9 
 
 
 

 
Two 25 ft. wide asphalt driveways provide access to the site from E. Ash Street. 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the 
property.  The proposed rezoning would be compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The property is located in a Special Flood Hazard Area known as the 100-year floodplain.  City 
water and sewer are available to serve the property. 
In March of 2017, the Planning Commission recommended approval of a change of zone request 
for the property from Neighborhood Business to General Business Conditional District with 
waver of site plan at time of rezoning.  However, in April of 2017, City Council denied the 
change of zone request. 
 
Since then, the property has been sold.  The new owner/applicant is seeking the rezoning change 
to increase the allowable uses for the site, thereby, enhancing the marketability of his property to 
rent the individual spaces.   Currently, a church, clothing store, beauty salon, sandwich shop and 
health and nutrition center occupy the commercial strip center. 
 
At the public hearing held on October 19, 2020, the property owner and an existing tenant within 
the shopping center came forward to speak in favor of the request and no one appeared to speak 
against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on October 26, 2020, recommended approval 
for the change of zone request from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) 
zoning district.    
 
Councilmember Williams made a motion to approve and accept the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission and: 
 

1. Find the request consistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
and;   

2. Adopt the following entitled Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from 
Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) zoning district. 

 
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Polack.  Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, 
Councilmembers Williams, Polack, Matthews, Aycock and Ham voted in favor of the motion.  
Mayor Allen voted against the motion.  Motion passed 6:1. 
 
OPRDINANCE NO. 2020-27  “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GODLSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 
CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Z-7-20 – Wayne Oil Company, Inc.  Northwest corner of Wayne Memorial Drive 
and Fourth Street (Neighborhood Business/General Business Conditional District to 
General Business).  Denied.  The applicant requests to rezone a portion of the subject property 
from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) zoning district. 
The requested zoning will be associated with the recombination of two individual lots described 
as follows: 
 
Lot #1: 
Frontage:   297.41 ft. (Wayne Memorial Drive) 
  325 ft. (Fourth Street) 
Area:    141,700 sq. ft., or 3.25 acres 
Zone:  Neighborhood Business (NB) / General Business  Conditional District (GB CD) 
 
Lot #2: 
Frontage:   83.69 ft. (Wayne Memorial Drive) 
Area:    8,596 sq. ft., or 0.19 acres 
Zone:  Neighborhood Business (NB) 
 
Area Proposed for Rezoning: 



10 
 
 
 

Frontage:   185.30 ft. (Wayne Memorial Drive) 
Area:    70,154 sq. ft., or 1.621 acres 
Zone:  Neighborhood Business (NB) 
 
Surrounding Zoning:  
North:   Residential (R-9); 
South:   Residential (R-9), Office and Institutional (O&I-1),  Neighborhood Business 

(NB); 
East:   Neighborhood Business (NB); and 
West:   Neighborhood Business (NB) and Residential (R-9) 
 
The subject properties are currently occupied by an existing business formally known as Wayne 
Oil Company, Inc. 
 
As previously stated, the applicant proposes to rezone subject property from Neighborhood 
Business (NB) to General Business (GB) zoning district.   
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the 
property.  The proposed rezoning would be compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer are available 
to serve the property.   
 
On January 3, 2017, Goldsboro City Council approved a change of zone request for a portion of 
the property from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business Conditional District (GB 
CD) limiting the use of the property to retail sale of auto parts and accessories.  As of this date, 
the property has not been developed.  The remaining portion is now being considered for sale 
and commercial development. 
 
At the public hearing held on October 19, 2020, the applicant came forward to speak in favor of 
the request and no one appeared to speak against the request. 
 
After the public hearing, the applicant indicated to staff their desire to request rezoning the 
property to General Business Conditional District for the operation of an automatic car wash.  
Staff’s recommendation to Planning Commission at their meeting held on October 26, 2020 was 
to deny the conventional General Business rezoning request without prejudice and allow the 
applicant to reapply for Conditional District rezoning without a six-month delay.   
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on October 26, 2020, recommended denial 
without prejudice for the change of zone request from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General 
Business (GB) zoning district.    
 
Councilmember Polack asked that lot adjacent to Wayne Oil with pine trees is that a part of it. 
Ms. Collins stated the vacant lot you are referencing, it came before council previously and did 
have a conditional district on it; however, it was never developed.  It would have to come back to 
Council.   
 
Councilmember Aycock made a motion Council accept the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and denied without prejudice the change of zoning for the property from 
Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) zoning district.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Broadaway seconded the motion.  Councilmember Williams stated my only concern was 
originally this item, we thought was going to be something else.  I will go with the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously.   
 

City Manager’s Report.  No report.  
 
 Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.   Mayor Pro Tem 
Broadaway read the following Proclamation: 
 

Veterans Day Proclamation.  Mayor Allen proclaimed November 11, 2020 as   



11 
 
 
 

“VETERANS DAY” in the City of Goldsboro and urged all citizens to remember the service and 
sacrifice of our veterans who defend our freedom and preserve our way of life.   

 
Councilmember Williams read the following Proclamation.   
 

 National Native American Heritage Month Proclamation.  Mayor Allen proclaimed 
November 2020 as National Native American Heritage Month.  In honor of National Native 
American Heritage Month, we recognize the contributions, sacrifices and accomplishments that 
Native Americans have made to our community and the United States. 
 
 Councilmember Williams stated I just want to ask everyone to get out and vote.  I’ve 
heard 6,000 men and women of color have not voted. 6,000 citizens of color that live in 
Goldsboro, aren’t we all in need of a better life, don’t be one of the 6,000 that hadn’t voted.  I 
say to you all don’t get distracted by those things that won’t better your life or the lives of your 
loved ones.  Tomorrow you can be part of change, just by getting out and using your 
constitutional rights, rights that weren’t easy to get.  People like me were sprayed with fire hoses, 
dogs were let loose on them, and others were beaten and killed for the right to vote.  Those 
people cleared the way for you and me to vote.  Let your voice be heard, vote, District 3, District 
1 and District 4. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated I would like to echo that, everybody should vote.  If 
you hadn’t voted, you are not doing yourself or your country what you should really be doing. 
 

Councilmember Polack stated I just want to commend the Goldsboro Police Department 
for doing their yard scape initiative.  I think they started today.  I also want to let you know the 
Arts Council is really turning things around in Goldsboro.  I went to an event last weekend, they 
actually had a register to sign in, and about 40% of people there were there from neighboring 
counties, some as far away as Wilmington.  People are getting the word about the arts. 

 
Councilmember Matthews stated no comment. 
 
Councilmember Ham stated no comment. 
 
Councilmember Aycock stated no comment. 
 
Mayor Allen stated I would like to encourage everyone to vote tomorrow.  It is important.   

 
  
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen  
       Mayor   
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC/NCCMC  
       City Clerk  



Item B



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-73 
 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY KATHY HILL 

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR MORE THAN 34 YEARS 

 
 WHEREAS, Kathy Hill retires on December 1, 2020 as a Laboratory Supervisor with the Public 
Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 34 years of service; and 
 

WHEREAS, Kathy began her career on September 3, 1986 as a Laboratory Technician with the Public 
Utilities Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, On October 30, 1996, Kathy was promoted to Chemist with the Public Utilities 

Department; and  
 
WHEREAS, On October 21, 1998, Kathy was promoted to Chemist/Assistant Superintendent with the 

Public Utilities Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 7, 2007, Kathy’s position was reclassified to Laboratory Supervisor with 

the Public Utilities Department where she has served until her retirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kathy has proven herself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the 

admiration and respect of her fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 
 

 WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Kathy Hill their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by her to the City over the years. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 
 

1. We express to Kathy our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in her 
future endeavors. 

 
2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be 

in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
 

        ___________________________   
                     Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 __________________________ 
 City Clerk 



D





REZONING REQUEST 

Z-9-20 FROM R-20 I RM-NC TO R-12 

110 CARRIAGE RD 

REZONING REQUEST 

OWNER :  CHESTLEY TAYLOR 

APPLICANT: CHESTLEY TAYLOR 

REQUEST: FROM R-20 /RM-NC TO R-12 

PIN#: 3518968518 

LOCATION: 110 CARRIAGE RD 

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best methods 
available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information as compiled 
by various agencies and departments both internal and external to the City 
of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented on this map are hereby 
notified that the primary information sources should be consulted for 
verification of the information contained herein. The City of Goldsboro and 
the companies contracted to develop these data assume no legal 
responsibilities for the information or accuracy contained on this map. It is 
strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these maps or data for any reason 
without the written consent of the City of Goldsboro. 



3918 
• REZONING REQUEST 

Z-9-20 FROM R-20 I RM-NC TO R-12 

110 CARRIAGE RD 

140 
• 

130 De 

REZONING REQUEST 

OWNER : CHESTLEY TAYLOR 

APPLICANT: CHESTLEY TAYLOR 

REQUEST: FROM R-20 /RM-NC TO R-12 

PIN#: 3518968518 

LOCATION: 110 CARRIAGE RD 

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best methods 
available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information as compiled 
by various agencies and departments both internal and external to the City 
of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented on this map are hereby 
notified that the primary information sources should be consulted for 
verification of the information contained herein. The City of Goldsboro and 
the companies contracted to develop these data assume no legal 
responsibilities for the information or accuracy contained on this map. It is 
strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these maps or data for any reason 
without the written consent of the City of Goldsboro. 



E









Z-10-20 WAYNE OIL COMPANY INC. 
REZONING REQUEST: FROM (NB) TO (GB CD) 

1 

REZONING REQUEST 

OWNER: WAYNE OIL COMPANY, INC. 
APPLICANT: BALDWIN DESIGN CONSULTANTS 
REQUEST: FROM NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS (NB) TO 

GENERAL BUSINESS CONDITIONAL DISTRICT (GB CD) 
PIN #: 3509-49-9397 

LOCATION: 1301 WAYNE MEMORIAL DRIVE 

100 50 0 100 Feet 

GOLDSB�RC 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source informatio 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and 
external to the City of Goldsboro. NC. Users of the data represented 
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources 
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herei1 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop thes• 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce thes• 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 



Z-10-20 WAYNE OIL COMPANY INC. 
REZONING REQUEST: FROM (NB) TO (GB CD) 

REZONING REQUEST 

OWNER: WAYNE OIL COMPANY, INC. 
APPLICANT: BALDWIN DESIGN CONSULTANTS 
REQUEST: FROM NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS (NB) TO 

PIN#: 
LOCATION: 

100 50 

GENERAL BUSINESS CONDITIONAL DISTRICT (GB CD) 
3509-49-9397 

1301 WAYNE MEMORIAL DRIVE 

0 100 Feet 

G�LDSBeRC 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and 
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented 
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources 
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro. 



Z-10-20 WAYNE OIL COMPANY INC. 
REZONING REQUEST: FROM (NB) TO (GB CD) 

REZONING REQUEST 

OWNER: WAYNE OIL COMPANY, INC. 
APPLICANT: BALDWIN DESIGN CONSULTANTS 
REQUEST: FROM NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS (NB) TO 

GENERAL BUSINESS CONDITIONAL DISTRICT (GB CD) 
PIN #: 3509-49-9397 

LOCATION: 1301 WAYNE MEMORIAL DRIVE 

100 50 0 100 Feet 

GCLDSBORC 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and 
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented 
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources 
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro. 



SITE DATA 

'a9'olOCDrotM'l'f11•J...c!S 
·�-�111·•...0CU 

---
------'° -·-
-------
- ·----

.,. _ _ __ .. 

_ _ ___ ... 

---·-
...C ·-·--

___ ......,. _ 

__ ICf __ _ 

jt� 
-:;-·.:::..c-

�Tu·r-�;.; 
�t���= ccn --
�--
�----
� --
= ·-�-
11!11 ·-IO·�-
e ·-

""""": 
. ... 

'·-:: 
1.tOU.1, 

>l,tl!JOl.f 
tl,-U. 

UMU. 11,+M SI . 
..... .. , . ··1 

' 

....__-o.&Anll .. -!l--. 

... ...._ ________ _... _lQ ___ _..Ol--<90-�---• ....__nou. _____ .._ ___ _ •ftc.--•"'-·· -· ' ' .., _,,_ ._.. ,,_GIMl'L 11, ·------DOL•:OIOl--10•Mf1rt.Ufl · - -

_ _.. __ ,,_,,, ,_ __ ...ct. ar,.«uon"o:ll! ..........,... --- -�-...10-.0I� .. -�·-Ulejl_ .... _ ,._ __ .,._,,, _ _ .._... _ _... ___ .. , ... .... . 

----�lO-- llll'f' �----rOT ______ 10 _ - Oll'l' -"•--=----1 ...._ � •«4 • •-.. n+-1- "1:� 
"'--'"------� 

-·---- -Ol--·
� - --�flll---I JIL.l.-1 �-------·-__ ,_0l __ fl ___ _ _ ___ .,. __ _ '· 111.1. c:ao.:nr-• -..:uDrM-••--, . ��--·-
.. ------�·"" -

.. AU. mcalllo'U ...U. ••---· · -....-
°'--'"------� 

---1. ...._ _ _..._., ____ , _ _ OI_ _'" _____ .,�-
- a M -

T 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

'I 
:1 
I 

!! 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

2' TYPICAL CURB & GUTTER EHD HCTION 
l'l.T.l.I 

WAYNE.�1=AHY,INC. 
--•r -•--- -·- -

HC PARKING ORADe DETAIL 
...... 

--- ·--••.,.-. 

1-111my_1m-� 
HANDICAPPED RAaF DU""';;: 

WTHOUf QJRI & QIJ'T'TER. 
l'lT.8.) 

�·- �·-
- ·-

·, - .� . ' . .. .. 
.. . . . . .. 

,. .'" ·.:. � :> .• :: •• ,. r '.� ••· :.. :··::�.; .} . . •  • • r 

�- ... _.,._ 
-�-

ltO"f•f1'1 
am:&ITNCWGP\Nll 

e 
. . 

. 

. 

• COtOTIC»W. USE ftEZONNO IWaJllT • 

PIRATES COYE 
CAA WASH 



T 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

:1 
,, 
I 

�I 
ii• 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

=-=-==:r=�:...;.:;-:;:-=::;=:==:: 
:_-.:_-:r....��_.:.:.-;::.=;:::::::; 

= 

1'--...... -�-··-..1� _____..._ 

�19oi>J'rl 

..................... _,,, ... � 

;=· .... 
i 

���TM:ETYAAOV!OE�OllWAYHEMEMORW.CRM(1"31..f"I 
�!lll!flYAAOV!OE�OllFOl#l:THST"EElfaJl.fl 
=:ir:�E�OET .. TIONl'Ofl-!'£1n'AltO"A"(211LFl 

-- --'--

=== : =9'ffV!Y�QETATIONl'OflalfF£ltfAllO"C""tlu.J') 
-- --"--
�-.. ____lL_ 

!��=�-:::::·I 
lir.££=t::�s:-Et�'.::: I 
l'lll�'"'ll"..=i:::r�� I 

NOf'lllTTAOClllN"l:lltl ____ ...._ 
OOl.Ot�.NC71'Jol 



I 

,... .ARAP�ljJL __
_ 

- -�rr , 
I 
I 

�$_�-+---- -----

(LOORPLAN 

@�,..��JH EXIT ELEVATION 

------- � 
wooo� 25'·10" 

-�'::=� 
--�-----1.Q.MAi� 

·-====== 1 -_rn� 

���� MfNELF!-� 

2•GASTM«>IJGIEAMAOOF 
COlOR(TwotlJWKU& 

0-fl?:rR_QQf_ _ L- _________ � __________ _J ___________ _j_ ___ "'""=t��,=--_ � __ _r.o_�� 
I I l I I 

�� __ _ j __________ _J ______ _ '·1fl' I ClflAW.8l.l:ataYSTDI ORAINAIUU"Smrial 

@';;!:.�!FRONT ELEVATION 

CCLOf1(1.DTIO)QlllEJIWATERCOl.OR(1.0TIO)a.9Wl\TER O'SmMCOt.OfllTWO 
M.llSTN'E�OWREXT RUllTl\IE�OYEA CJYP.CMftZlllWDfllWIMO cwl I 

__-_wooo�- - - - - � 

DltM'WLE £Fl MTDI ---�O�OYM�:; 
- ?�D!WOF� ___ £A&Uljj� 

COMM!.RCIAL � INDUSTJUAL 
-- CONST�UCTION --

4857 N. MAia Stree� Soitt 220 
Acwortk, GA 30101 
Pkoae: 678.574.4994 

Fax: 678.574.4997 
_...�-

Tlnl!IMA�ldJT1DPlllOf'PTTOl'.U.0. 
t:'llVl"°"""DTALUltVICIS,INCMfA'nRUMMl 

a:'�oa��..=r=l1' 
Yl'IUTTVl�Of',\R.ag 
IL�AL-VK:D,ll'IC. 

...,,.,., 
:"'-.,t:,\L\ 
M8('.HAHlCAL IKNCil'iEEl 
""""""""' 

=-r-... '=-�OWJ.OTn,HC 
"'"""""'-"""""" 
=�1 
""""""'-""'
_..,...,.,.,. ��NC 
"""-"""""' 
......,., .......... 
OtlRTl:CIVt.Oaotw 
""-=C-.im-t1n 

PIRATES COVE 

ELEVATIONS 

-- ,..,,.. 

CMC 
KllH 

A104 
,..,_ 



�"!.,9'. rrT�OQF- ________ �I ___ ��£4f.� ___ � _____ jJ_ ________ T_ ______ T9. �� 
'-1 3 II' I I I 31 •--:-Q"\J 

�EFIS'l'S'TEM 
ODUJl'l1•Tm)OYet-TM .............. ,..,. 

�-
-- -����"°-1!!��!!!i!!!!!!i!!!!!!!�!! 

@���_!H ENTRANCE ELEVATION 

@�!�
,
�SIDE ELEVATION 

=· 

��-�--------- +-------- _.j� 
' 

iii!l•�r------1------�'1� 

_______ T..Q.J!,q_� 

___ .!IMS.!'� 

'� 

COMMEkCJAL" mousn.JAL 
-- CONSTRUCTION --

4857 N. Main Strftt, Salte 220 
Acworth, GA 30101 

Pboae: 678.574.4994 
Fu: 678.574.4997 ---

TlmlallaAM"68AUTHJ.P90l'nTTOfAUOlt 
llJYl�ALIERYIC'D,.1"C.OIWA1'Dd.o.. 

OOllOA!flll.iUlDSKA.U.NOTKHl'MlDUCDllt 

-0.:=::�1!:-urms 
lln'lllOMMrl'TAl..IUvtaS,9fC, 

"""""" :u-�AIA 
:::=.,.IHOOOD 
���O\.W.OTT'&,NC 
"'""""'-"""""" 
""""""'" 
-

"""""'-"-""" ..... ... .........,. 
==�NC 
"""-........ 
................... 
<»tlfROYLCllOUI' 
-1-inw1.-, 

PIRATES COVE 

ELEVATIONS 

-- 19-0376 .. ...,,,,. 
-� CUC 
"""""� """ 

A105 
.. _ 



F





















North Carolina 
Wayne County 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED 
MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS 

FINANCING BY THE BURLINGTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina (the “City”) will hold 
a public hearing as required by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
“Code”), with respect to the proposed issuance by the Burlington Housing Authority (the “Authority”) of 
its multifamily housing revenue bonds in an amount up to $53,500,000 (the “Bonds”).   

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of approximately $6,100,000 will be used to finance 
the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping by an affiliated or related entity of Vitus Group, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, and Affordable Housing Institute, Inc., a Florida nonprofit corporation 
(the “Company”), of a multifamily residential rental facility known as Jefferson Court Apartments (the 
“Development”). The Development consists of 60 units located in 13 residential buildings on an 
approximately 6.64 acre tract at 1100 N. Jefferson Avenue in the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina.  The 
Development will be owned and operated by the Company or an affiliated or related entity.   

The housing bonds, when and if issued by the Authority, will be issued pursuant to Chapter 157 of the 
General Statutes of North Carolina and shall not be a debt of the State of North Carolina (the “State”), the 
Authority, the City or any political subdivision thereof and none of the State, the Authority, the City, or any 
political subdivision of any of them shall be liable thereon, nor in any event shall such bonds be payable 
out of any funds or properties other than those of the Authority derived solely from payments made by the 
Company.   

The public hearing, which may be continued or adjourned, will be held on November 16, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. 
(or as soon thereafter as the hearing is held) in the Goldsboro City Hall, Large Conference Room, Room 
206, 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina 27530.  Any person interested in the issuance of the 
Bonds or the Development may appear and be heard at the public hearing. Any person wishing to comment 
in writing on the Development or the issuance of the Bonds should do so, within seven (7) days after the 
date of publication of this notice to the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 200 N. 
Center Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina 27530, Attention: City Clerk. 

Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
City of Goldsboro  
PO Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 
mcapps@goldsboronc.gov 

 
This the 5th day of November, 2020. 

 
 
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
City of Goldsboro 
(City Seal) 
 

 
 

Please run this ad Thursday, November  5, 2020. 

mailto:mcapps@goldsboronc.gov


G











H



ORDINANCE NO. 2020- 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AND HOME INVESTMENT 

PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (C2101)  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been designated an “Entitlement City”, and desires to 
provide support of housing and non-housing community development projects and activities 
while leveraging through public-partnerships and other grant opportunities and to reinvest 
program income in higher potential projects and activities for low-to-moderate income 
individuals and families; and  

WHEREAS, the City will receive $351,137 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development for Fiscal Year 2020-21; and  

WHEREAS, in addition, the City will receive $237,076 under the Federal HOME Investment 
Partnership Program (HOME) funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
for Fiscal Year 2020-21; and  

WHEREAS, Congress adopted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act (P.L. 116-136) established the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) on March 27, 2020, and the 
City was awarded a special allocation of $206,554 to provide essential service and employment 
training to those affected by the Coronavirus pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures in order to begin fulfilling the terms of 
the grant, and this will be funded with federal grant revenue and program income. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment 
Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101) be amended as follows: 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment
Partnership Program FY20-FY29 Special Revenue Fund (C2101)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Grants CDBG FY19-20 328,479.00$         328,479.00$          -$               
Federal Grants HOME FY19-20 214,732.00           214,732.00            - 
Federal Grants CDBG FY20-21 351,137.00            351,137.00      
Federal Grants HOME FY20-21 237,076.00            237,076.00      
Federal Grants CDBG FY20-21 CRF COVID-19 206,554.00            206,554.00      
CDBG Program Income - Principal 2,870.00              5,740.00                2,870.00         
CDBG Program Income - Interest 250.00 500.00 250.00            
HOME Program Income - Principal 3,449.00              6,898.00                3,449.00         
HOME Program Income - Interest 599.00 1,198.00                599.00            

Total Revenues 550,379.00$      1,352,314.00$     801,935.00$ 

Expenditures:
CDBG FY19-20
Administration 76,390.00$           76,390.00$            -$               
Consultant Services (Admin) 10,000.00            10,000.00              - 
Rehabilitation 3,120.00              3,120.00                - 
Public Facilities - W.A. Foster Debt Principal Contribu 208,454.00           208,454.00            - 
Afterschool Enrichment 33,635.00            33,635.00              - 
Keller Way Extension for Adair Place (NCDOC Grant ?
Subtotal - CDBG FY19-20 331,599.00$      331,599.00$        -$              



Home FY19-20
Administration 20,694.00$           20,694.00$            -$               
Office Supplies (Admin) 779.00 779.00 - 
CHDO Set Aside 107,307.00           107,307.00            - 
Homebuyer Assistance 90,000.00            90,000.00              - 
Subtotal - Home FY19-20 218,780.00$      218,780.00$        -$              

CDBG FY20-21
Administration 70,227.00$            70,227.00$      
Consultant Services (Admin) 38,120.00              38,120.00       
Rehabilitation 85,195.00              85,195.00       
Public Facilities - W.A. Foster Debt Principal Contribution 160,715.00            160,715.00      
Afterschool Enrichment - 
Subtotal - CDBG FY20-21 -$  354,257.00$        354,257.00$ 

Home FY20-21
Administration 23,708.00$            23,708.00$      
Rehabilitation 113,807.00            113,807.00      
CHDO Set Aside 41,609.00              41,609.00       
Homebuyer Assistance 62,000.00              62,000.00       
Subtotal - Administration -$  241,124.00$        241,124.00$ 

CDBG-CV FY20-21 (CRF COVID-19)
Administration 41,308.00$            41,308.00$      
Non-Profits 165,246.00            165,246.00      
Subtotal - CDBG-CV FY20-21 (CRF COVID-19) -$  206,554.00$        206,554.00$ 

Total Expenditures 550,379.00$      1,352,314.00$     801,935.00$ 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2020. 

______________________________ 

Chuck Allen 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 













Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 87 

AP-35 Projects - 91.220(d) 

Introduction: 

Goldsboro will support housing and non-housing community development projects and activities within FY20-21 AAP 

through HUD entitlement funds from CDBG and HOME, funding granted by North Carolina Housing Finance Agency 

(NCHFA), pursing competitive grants, and other resources available. Goldsboro’s strategy this AAP cycle will mirror 

the overall ConPlan cycle by leveraging even more through public-partnerships and resources and to reinvest 

program income in higher potential projects and activities for LMI individuals and families. In FY20-21 Goldsboro will 

be allocated funding in response to Coronavirus (COVID-19) under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 

Act (CARES Act). This will be a new grant program Community Development Block Grant – Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) to 

fund programs and activities to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the spread of COVID-19.  

Projects 

Sorting # Project Name 

1 Fair Housing 

2 Housing Counseling 

3 Public Facilities & Improvements (City-Owned) 

4 Public Services 

5 Rehabilitation (Acquisition, Admin., & Public Owned Residential Bldgs.) 

6 CHDO Reserve 

7 Homebuyer Assistance 

8 Homebuyer Assistance & Rehabilitation 

9 Rental Housing Development 

10 Program Administration (CDBG & HOME) 

11 COVID-19 Public Service Grants 

Table – Project Information 

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs: 

Funding allocations are based on information within SP-25 Priority Needs – 91.215(a)(2) Basis for Relative Priority. 

The major obstacle to addressing underserved needs in Goldsboro is the lack of available funding to serve all needs 

within the area.   



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 88 

AP-38 Project Summary 
Project Summary Information 

Project Sorting Number:  1 

Project Title:  Fair Housing 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 1 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 05J-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing Choice Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Availability/Accessibility Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be provided to taking meaningful actions to overcome significant disparities 

in housing needs and in access to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with 

truly integrated and balanced living patterns, transforming racially and ethnically 

concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity, and fostering and maintaining 

compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws. 

CDBG:  $ 2,000 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total     $ 2,000 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 2,000 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
40 Low/Mod Limited Clientele (LMC) Families 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: Fair housing services (e.g. counseling on housing discrimination) as public services. 

Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 2,000 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Public service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit 40 Persons Assisted 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 89 

Project Sorting Number:  2 

Project Title:  Housing Counseling 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 2 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 13A-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Increase Access to Affordable Homeownership 

Options  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Affordability Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be provided for counseling that is independent, expert advice customized to 

the need of the consumer to address the consumer's housing barriers and to help 

achieve their housing goals. This will include, but not be limited to, intake; financial and 

housing affordability analysis; an action plan, except for reverse mortgage counseling; 

and a reasonable effort to have follow-up communication with the client when possible. 

CDBG:  $ 6,120 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total     $ 6,120 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 6,120 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
30 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: Housing Counseling, under 24 CFR 5.100 

Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 6,120 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Public service activities for Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit 30 Households Assisted 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 90 

Project Sorting Number:  3 

Project Title:  Public Facilities & Improvements (City-Owned) 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 3 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 03A/Z-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Improve-Expand Public Facilities Access and 

Capacity  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Non-Housing Community Development 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Sustainability Objective:  Create suitable living environments 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be used to support the needs of Goldsboro’s residential sustainability growth 

and, at the same time, replacing existing facilities that have deteriorated due to age of 

have become obsolete within LMI census tracts/block groups. It is anticipated that the 

costs for such improvements will leverage or spur new developments and enhance 

existing residential units and possibly nearby businesses. Funds will be used for the debt 

service of the WA Foster Center construction approved under the 2015 Request for 

Release of Funds and Certification by HUD. 

CDBG:  $ 340,123 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total     $ 340,123 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 340,123 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
1,497 Families within Low/Mod Area Benefit (LMA) 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: CDBG funds will be used by the grantee or other public or private non-profit entities for 

public facilities and improvements. Other – CDBG – CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 340,123 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit 1,497 Persons Assisted 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 91 

Project Sorting Number:  4 

Project Title:  Public Services 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 4 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 05A/Z-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Provide Essential Service & Employment 

Training   

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Non-Housing Community Development 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Availability/Accessibility Objective:  Create economic opportunities 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be used to provide and expand upon essential services and employment 

training to LMI individuals and families and special needs populations, not to exceed the 

15% public services cap as regulated by HUD. 

CDBG:  $ 30,000 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total     $ 30,000 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 30,000 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
705 Low/Mod Limited Clientele (LMC) Families 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: CDBG assisted public services activities including, but not limited to: employment 

services, crime prevention, health services, substance abuse services, & edu. programs. Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 30,000 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Public Service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit 705 Persons Assisted 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 92 

Project Sorting Number:  5 

Project Title:  Rehabilitation (Acquisition, Admin., & Public Owned Residential Bldgs.) 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 5 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 14D,14G,14H-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Provide Rehabilitation Owner-Occupied and 

City-Owned   

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Sustainability Objective:  Create suitable living environments 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be provided for owner-occupied housing rehabilitation for LMI households and 

special needs population. Funds will also be provided for Goldsboro to acquire, 

rehabilitate, or reconstruct housing units to ensure affordability for LMI households and 

special needs populations. While reducing slum & blight to benefit LMI households and 

special needs populations within a physical environment of a deteriorating area. Funds will 

be provided for all delivery costs (including staff, other direct costs, and service costs) 

directly related to carrying out housing rehabilitation activities. 

CDBG:  $ 85,910 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total     $ 85,910 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 85,195 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
23 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 100,000 Planned Activities: Housing: acquisition of property to be rehabilitated for housing, Rehabilitation of 

permanent housing owned by a public entity other than a PHA, & all delivery costs. Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 185,910 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Homeowner Housing Added 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated 

Building Demolished 

6 

14 

3 

Households Housing Units 

Households Housing Units 

Buildings 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 93 

Project Sorting Number:  6 

Project Title:  CHDO Reserve 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 6 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 3CR-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Increase Access to Affordable Homeownership 

Option  

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Neighborhood Stabilization 

Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Affordability Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be used to add new homeownership housing by nonprofit(s) designated as 

Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) for construction of new single-

family housing within their organization’s target area(s). 

CDBG:  $ 0 

HOME:   $ 41,609 

Total     $ 41,609 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 0 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
2 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 41,609 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: At least 15% of HOME funds will be set aside for specific activities to be undertaken by a 

special type of nonprofit(s) as a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total     $ 41,609 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Homeowner Housing Added 2 Households Housing Units 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 94 

Project Sorting Number:  7 

Project Title:  Homebuyer Assistance 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 7 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 51HB-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Increase Access to Affordable Homeownership 

Option  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Affordability Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be used to reduce the monthly carrying costs of mortgage loans from private 

lenders to increase homeownership opportunities through down payment and closing 

cost assistance to LMI households (including individuals and families with children who 

are currently housed but threatened with homelessness). 

CDBG:  $ 0 

HOME:   $ 62,000 

Total     $ 62,000 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 0 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
10 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 62,000 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: Direct financial assistance in the form of deferred-payment loans to purchase first primary 

home. Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 62,000 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Direct Financial Assistance to Homebuyers 10 Households Assisted 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 95 

Project Sorting Number:  8 

Project Title:  Homebuyer Assistance & Rehabilitation 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 8 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 52HB-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Increase Access to Affordable Homeownership 

Option  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Affordability Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be provided for properties to be acquired, rehabilitated, or reconstructed for resale 

as single-family or multi-family housing units for LMI households within Goldsboro’s 

targeted area(s) utilizing a developer. This will allow the reduction for the monthly carrying 

costs of mortgage loans to increase homeownership opportunities through down payment 

and closing cost assistance to LMI households (including individuals and families with 

children who are currently housed but threatened with homelessness). 

CDBG:  $ 0 

HOME:   $ 113,807 

Total     $ 113,807 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 0 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
4 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 113,807 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: Grantee will acquire and rehabilitate, or assist a developer to acquire and rehabilitate, 

substandard properties to be sold after rehabilitation to low-income purchasers. Other- CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total   $ 113,807 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Homeowner Housing Added 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated 

2 

2 

Households Housing Unit 

Households Housing Unit 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 96 

Project Sorting Number:  9 

Project Title:  Rental Housing Development 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 9 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 6RH-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Increase Affordable Rental Housing Option Located approximately at 3227 Central Heights 

Road, Goldsboro, NC 27534 

Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Neighborhood Stabilization 

Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Affordability Objective:  Provide decent affordable housing 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be used to leverage public-private partnerships that produces new affordable 

rental housing. This will allow for LMI households to pay no more than 30 percent of their 

income for housing cost (including utilities). 

CDBG:  $ 0 

HOME:   $ 525,028 

Total     $ 525,028 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 0 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
80 Low/Mod Housing (LMH) Families 

HOME:   $ 525,028 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: HOME funds will be used toward the new construction of rental housing in the form of 

permanent mortgage loan assistance. Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 0 

Total  $ 525,028 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Rental units constructed 80 Households Housing Unit 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 97 

Project Sorting Number:  10 

Project Title:  Program Administration (CDBG & HOME) 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 10 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 21A/AD-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Program Admin to Support ConPlan and AAPs 

Objectives  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) 

Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Non-Housing Community Development 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Sustainability Objective:  Create suitable living environments 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: Funds will be provided for planning, activities, and administration to support this five-year 

cycle ConPlan and AAPs’ objectives, not to exceed the 20% CDBG, 20% CDBG-CV, and 10% 

HOME program caps as regulated by HUD.  

CDBG:  $ 70,227 

HOME:   $ 23,708 

Total     $ 93,935 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 70,227 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
Not applicable to this type of project 

HOME:   $ 23,708 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: Overall program admin., including (but not limited to) salaries, wages, and related costs of 

grantee staff or others engaged in program management, monitoring, and evaluation. Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 41,308 

Total   $ 93,935 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Not applicable to this type of project 



Goldsboro 2020-2024 ConPlan and 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) Page | 98 

Project Sorting Number:  11 

Project Title:  COVID-19 Public Service Grants 

Grantee/PJ Name: Goldsboro Program Year: 2020 IDIS Project ID: 11 Grantee/PJ Project ID & (Matrix Code): 19CV-2020 

Annual Goal(s) Supported Target Area(s) Included & Location Description Priority Need(s) Addressed 

Provides Essential Service & Employment 

Training  

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001500) 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001800) 

Attainable Housing Development & Preservation 

Neighborhood Stabilization 

Opportunity Zone (Census Tract:37191001900) Non-Housing Community Development 

Goldsboro Citywide (within LMI requirements) Equity & Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 

Target Date for Completion:  6/30/2021 Outcome: Sustainability Objective:  Create suitable living environments 

Est. Amount (including Program Income) Description: The CDBG-CV funds allocated under Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 

(CARES Act) may be used under 24 CFR Parts 570.201-570.206, that prevent, prepare for, and 

respond to the spread of COVID-19. 

CDBG:  $ 0 

HOME:   $ 0 

Total      $ 0 

Expected Resources 

CDBG:  $ 0 Estimate the number and type of families 

that will benefit from the proposed activities: 
600 Low/Mod Limited Clientele (LMC) Families 

HOME:   $ 0 

Other – Urgent Repair (URP)   $ 0 Planned Activities: CDBG-CV assisted public services activities to prevent, prepare for, and respond the spread 

of COVID-19. This activity is identified as an urgent need caused by COVID-19 and noted as 

such within the CARES Act and all HUD memorandum transmittals. 

Other – CDBG-CV:   $ 165,246 

Total   $ 165,246 

Goal Outcome Indicator(s) Quantity Unit of Measurement (UoM) 

Public Service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit 

Homelessness Prevention 

500 

100 

Persons Assisted 

Persons Assisted 



I



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- _____ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns certain real property at 422 Wilson Street (Pin #3600321705); 
and  

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 
after receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of 
$1,340.00 (One Thousand Three Hundred Forty Dollars and no/100) submitted by Sergio Sanchez 
(Offeror); and 

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 
$67.00 (Sixty Seven Dollars and No/100). 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 
that: 

1) The City Council declares the property surplus.
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of North

Carolina General Statute § 160A-269.
3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of general

circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and
shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset.

4) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the
office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal business hours
within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the Finance
Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer. If there is more
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer.

5) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be
published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid
having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.

6) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first
$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.

7) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of
the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check. The city will return the
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received. The city will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing.

8) The terms of the final sale are:
a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30

days after the final upset bid period has passed.
b) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing.
c) Buyer must pay closing costs.

9) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids.

10) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. Appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey the
property to Offeror.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 
___________________, 2020. 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: _________________________ 
City Clerk 







WOODROW ST

SERVICE

RD

CA
LV

AR
Y 

ST

WILSON 

ST

E

US
70

HWY

502
500

413

601

421

412
414

426

416

417

424

418

420

415

412
414

416

422

.

422  WILSON  STREET

50'

50'

20
0'20

6'





11/10/2020 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map6492612cf0a24f628fd42df1edd052dcx.htm&t=printid 1/2

Wayne
Printed November 10, 2020

See Below for Disclaimer



11/10/2020 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map6492612cf0a24f628fd42df1edd052dcx.htm&t=printid 2/2

OBJECTID
35145

PIN
3600321705

Owner Name
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

Co-Owner Name
 

Owner Address 1
PO BOX A

Owner Address 2
 

Owner Address 3
 

Owner City
GOLDSBORO

Owner State
NC

Owner Zip
27533-9701

Unit or Apt
 

Deed Date
7/1/2002 12:00:00 AM

REID
0056477

Deed Book
2176

Deed Page
470

Sale Month
7

Sale Year
2002

Sale Price
0

Previous Deed Book
01791

Previous Deed Page
0688

Previous Sale Month
5

Previous Sales Year
2000

Previous Sale Price
0

Property Use
01 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

Record Source
Owner

Property Address
422 WILSON ST

Legal Description
WILSON ST

Acres
1

Neighborhood
01201

Account Number
76121320

Township Code
12

Building Value
0

Outbuilding Value
0

Land Value
2680

Total Market Value
2680

Total Assessed Value
2680

Vacant Or Improved
I

Vacant or Improved 2
I

Users of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, plats and
other public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data contained
in this information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By accepting
this disclaimer you agree and understand the disclaimer.



J



11/10/2020 Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1721204&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 11/10/2020 2:42:40 PM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO Return/Appeal Notes:   3600321705
422 WILSON ST UNIQ ID 56477
76121320 ID NO: 12000053001012

CITY - GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) CARD NO. 1 of 1
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2020 WILSON ST 1.000 LT SRC= 
Appraised by 60 on 01201 NORTHSIDE OF TOWN TW-12 C-01 EX-5AT- LAST ACTION 20170729
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO

01 00 % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

STORIES:  

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 2,680
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 2,680
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 2,680
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 2,680
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL 2,680

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 2,680
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 2,680

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
02176 0470 7 2002 WD U I 0
01791 0688 5 2000 WD U I 0
01280 0752 1 1901 WD U I 0
00624 0176 1 1901 WD U V 0

HEATED AREA 
NOTES

HSE VERY POOR,VACANT & 
BOARDED UP.

SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE
SUBAREA
TOTALS

CODE QUALITY DESCRIPTION LTH WTH UNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG# L/B

SIZE
FACT AYB EYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS 
LAND INFORMATION

HIGHEST AND
BEST USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH /
SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES 
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R6 50 203 1.0700 2 1.0000 50.00 50.000 FF 1.070 53.50 2675 
TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA 2,680  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AWARD AND FINAL SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns certain real property at 619 Slaughter Street (Pin 

#3509127054); and  
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 

after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an upset bid offer to purchase the property described above, in the 

amount of $2,020.00 (Two Thousand Twenty Dollars and no/100) submitted by Cox Real Estate (Offeror); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, there were no other upset bids received in the subsequent upset bid period; and 
 
WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 

$101.00 (One Hundred One Dollars and No/100). 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that: 
 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General 

Statute  § 160A-269. 
3) The City Council accepts the final upset bid offer as stated. 
4) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to 

convey the property to the Offeror. 
5) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred 

and recorded. 
6) The terms of the final sale are:  

a) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
b) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 

___________________, 2020. 
 

 
      _____________________________   
      Mayor 

 
 
 
 

Attest: _________________________  
City Clerk    

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AWARD AND FINAL SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns certain real property at 621 Slaughter Street (Pin 

#3509127050); and  
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 

after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an upset bid offer to purchase the property described above, in the 

amount of $2,020.00 (Two Thousand Twenty Dollars and no/100) submitted by Cox Real Estate (Offeror); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, there were no other upset bids received in the subsequent upset bid period; and 
 
WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 

$101.00 (One Hundred One Dollars and No/100). 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that: 
 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General 

Statute  § 160A-269. 
3) The City Council accepts the final upset bid offer as stated. 
4) City officials shall seek approval of the final sale from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners. 
5) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to 

convey the property to the Offeror after concurrence from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners. 
6) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred 

and recorded. 
7) The terms of the final sale are:  

a) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
b) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 

___________________, 2020. 
 

 
      _____________________________   
      Mayor 

 
 
 
 

Attest: _________________________  
City Clerk   











Item  __________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

NOVEMBER 16, 2020 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Second Wave Funding of North Carolina Tourism 
Promotion Recovery Grant in the Amount of $10,750 

BACKGROUND: On October 29, 2020, the Travel and Tourism Department 
applied for a second wave of federal funding made available for 
destination marketing offices (DMOs) across the state. By way 
of House Bill 1023 (Coronavirus Relief Fund/Additions & 
Revisions), the NC General Assembly created a $1.5 million 
appropriation to help eligible Destination Marketing Offices 
(DMOs) experiencing reduced ability to market their 
destinations due to revenue loss. The first round of grants was 
awarded at the beginning of October 2020. A lack of initial 
participation from DMOs across the state caused a surplus of 
available funding, which led to a second opportunity for tourism 
offices to apply for relief funding to help their visitor economies 
recover from the impacts of Covid-19.   

These NC Tourism Promotion Grants are designed to provide 
relief to areas of the state most dependent on travel and 
tourism. As part of the application process, the Travel & Tourism 
Department submitted a planned use proposal outlining which 
advertising strategies would be used with the awarded grant 
money. The strategies and content had to align with the 
specifications of the CARES Act guidelines and be reviewed by 
the NC Tourism Promotion Grant Review Committee. The final 
outcome of the advertising methods will be audited to ensure 
compliance with the federal guidelines.   

The acceptance of this grant requires no match from the City. 

Deliverables includes a resolution to accept the grant in 
accordance with the grant guidelines. 

RECOMMENDATION:    It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 

K





RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT TO ACCEPT  
THE NORTH CAROLINA TOURISM PROMOTION RECOVERY GRANT (AGREEMENT 

#60-00-40-02) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro’s Travel & Tourism Division has 
heretofore found it in the public interest to apply for second wave federal grant funding made 
available through the House Bill 1023 (Coronavirus Relief Fund/Additions & Revisions) 
promotion to help the visitor economy of Goldsboro-Wayne County recover from the impacts of 
Covid-19; and  

WHEREAS, the NC General Assembly created a $1.5 million appropriation to help eligible 
Destination Marketing Offices (DMOs) experiencing reduced ability to market their destinations 
due to revenue loss. These NC Tourism Promotion Grants are designed to provide relief to areas 
of the state most dependent on travel and tourism to assist with tourism; and 

WHEREAS, on October 29, 2020 the City submitted an application for the North Carolina 
Tourism Promotion Recovery Grant to fund a digital marketing campaign targeting audiences most 
interested in traveling to safe destinations like Goldsboro-Wayne County; and 

WHEREAS, based on the specifications of the marketing campaign details, a grant in the amount 
of $10,750 was awarded on November 5, 2020, and the terms of the grant award require that the 
applicant officially accept the award and use the grant funds between November 17, 20 and 
December 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to use the grant in accordance with the grant guidelines and proposed 
plan. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro: 

The Goldsboro City Council hereby approves and accepts the North Carolina Tourism Promotion 
Recovery Grant (AGREEMENT #60-00-40-02). 

The Goldsboro City Council further authorizes City officials and staff to execute the necessary 
documents on behalf of the City of Goldsboro in order to effectuate this transaction. 

This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

This _______ day of ______________, 2020. 

__________________________________ 
Chuck Allen 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 



L



2 

Boards and Commissions Meeting Information 

Board Meeting Information Contact 
Commission on Community Relations and 
Development 

The Commission shall hold regular meetings 
monthly on the second Tuesdays at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Anteroom of the Historic City Hall Building, 214 N. 
Center Street, Goldsboro, NC, 27530. 

Shycole Simpson-
Carter 
919-580-4359 

Historic District Commission The Historic District Commission convenes the first 
Tuesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Anteroom, located on the second floor of City Hall 
at 214 North Center Street. 

Jennifer Collins 
919-580-4333 

Local Firefighters' Relief Fund Board of 
Trustees 

The Board of Trustees of the Local Firefighters’ 
Relief Fund Board of Trustees convenes at least on a 
semi-annual basis or as the need arises. All meetings 
are called by the Secretary of the Board and are held 
in the Fire-Police complex located at 204 South 
Center Street.  

Chief Joe Dixon 
919-580-4262 

Mayor's Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities 

The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities convenes on the third Thursday at noon, 
in the Anteroom on the second floor of Historic City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street. 

Shycole Simpson-
Carter 
919-580-4359 

Municipal Golf Course Committee The Committee shall hold quarterly meetings on the 
third Wednesday of the month. Meetings are held at 
2:00 p.m. at the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 
located at 1501-B South Slocumb Street. 

Obie Agbasi 
919-735-0411 

Planning Commission / Board of 
Adjustment 

The Goldsboro Planning Commission convenes the 
third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m., in joint 
session with the Goldsboro City Council in the 
Council Chambers on the second floor of City Hall 
located at 214 North Center Street. The Planning 
Commission / Board of Adjustment also meets the 
last Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers on the second floor of City Hall 
located at 214 North Center Street. 

Jennifer Collins 
919-580-4333 

Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Commission 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 
convenes on the third Tuesday of each month at 6:00 
p.m. in the Conference Room of the Herman Park 
Center, 901 East Ash Street. 

Felicia Brown 
919-739-7482 

Goldsboro Tourism Council The Goldsboro Tourism Council meets the fourth 
Wednesday of each month at 8:30 a.m. in the Board 
Room of the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce 
which is located at 308 North William Street.  

Ashlin Glatthar 
919-734-7922 



M



PROPOSED  
Goldsboro City Council Meeting Dates for 2021 

Monday, January 4 
*Tuesday, January 19 (Monday, January 18th is a holiday – Martin Luther King, Jr. Day)

Monday, February 1 
Monday, February 15 

Monday, March 1 
Monday, March 15 

Monday, April 5 
Monday, April 19 

Monday, May 3 
Monday, May 17 

Monday, June 7 
Monday, June 21 

Monday, July 12 

Monday, August 2 
Monday, August 16 

*Tuesday, September 7 (Monday, September 6th is a holiday – Labor Day)
*Monday, September 20

Monday, October 4 
Monday, October 18 

Monday, November 1 
Monday, November 15 

Monday, December 6 
Monday, December 20 

Proposed Retreat Dates 2021 
February 8 and 9 (Monday and Tuesday)  
February 24 and 25 (Wednesday and Thursday) 



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

October 2020 

1. Human Resources
2. Community Relations
3. Paramount Theater-GEC
4. Inspections
5. Downtown Development
6. Information Technology
7. Public Works
8. Public Utilities
9. Finance

10. Planning
11. Engineering
12. Fire
13. Police
14. Parks and Recreation
15. Travel and Tourism

Item N



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
October 2020  
Date Prepared: November 9, 2020 

Human Resources 
• Human Resources staff met with Public Utilities Director to discuss certification policy and Apprenticeship

Program.
• Annual League of Municipalities Salaries Survey submitted October 12.
• Staff served on interview panels at Public Works (Solid Waste Technician, Equipment Operator, and Senior

Heavy Equipment Operator); also provided assistance for Fire Engineer written exam.
• Staff provided assistance with open enrollment and user access for training module.
• Supervisors are in the process of completing annual evaluations. Due date: November 13, 2020.
• We are in the second phase of the classification and compensation study. Department heads are reviewing

draft job descriptions before they are finalized and updated. Deadline to submit to HR: November 30.
• Total training completed - 417 Fire Safety and 415 Diversity. These were the first two courses launched in

Learn, the on-line training module in NeoGov. Administrators will distribute new classes once a month.
• City employees are still volunteering for Meals on Wheels. We appreciate their willingness to serve the

community.

Safety 
• October 1 - NeoGov on-line training kick-off
• October 5 – Webinar training with Department of Labor: Recordkeeping Module
• October 7 - Grappler machine demonstration at Public Works with Safety Committee
• October 8 – Met with Police Training Captain to discuss on-line training
• October 12 – Conducted safety inspections at all City Facilities
• October 20 – Goldsboro Safety Awards Virtual Banquet. City of Goldsboro received 23 awards.
• October 27 – NC Freedom Festival meeting at Downtown Goldsboro
• October 29 – Safety and Health inspection at Herman Park facility
• Conducted City Hall fire extinguisher inspections
• The Safety and Accident Review Committee did not meet this month.

Occupational Health  
There were 155 clinic visits this month. Flu shots were administered at City Hall and the Fire/Police Complex. The 
nurse provided assistance with open enrollment. There were no random drug screens this month.  



2 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Total 
Employment 

573 573 575 574 573 571 568 565 561 561 570 

Vacancies 21 23 28 16 12 13 12 13 19 12 17 
Applications 480 367 208 158 73 124 227 225 262 177 230 

Applicant 
Notices 

277 295 110 259 117 384 106 94 122 111 188 

New Hires     9 6 5 3 1 3 3 4 2 5 4 
Resignations 1 3 2 4 1 5 3 6 4 4 3 
Retirements 4 2 1 0 1 0 3 1 1 1 1 
Terminations 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 .20 
Turnover Rate  .87% .87% .52% .70% .35% .88% 1.06% 1.24% .89% 0.82% 
Vehicle 
Accidents 

    4 0 2 5 5 2 0 0 2 0 2 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

    0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0.30 

FFCRA Leave 0 10 6 20 20 11 17 13 12 

Telework 37 39 35 32 32 32 33 24 33 

2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Applications 348 320 346 542 283 203 401 247 61 274 620 276 323 
New Hires 11 7 1 3 3 1 8 6 6 2 0 0 4 
Separations 3 3 6 3 1 5 4 3 5 3 2 11 4 
Vehicle 
Accidents 

7 4 6 3 6 4 5 5 0 4  2 2 4 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

2 4 3 0 2 2 0 0 0 0  0 0 1 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and 
permanent part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
October 2020 
Prepared By:  Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  November 9, 2020 
 
• On October 15, 2020 the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) hosted a drive-thru virtual Annual 

Awards Banquet at the Goldsboro Event Center to recognize award winners for contributions made towards persons 
with disabilities.  The Committee is scheduled to meet on December 17, 2020 at 12:00 pm. 
 

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development met on October 13, 2020 at 6:00 pm.  During the 
meeting, the Commission discussed the City Council plans to establish a separate Race Relations Committee.  The 
Commission also agreed to work with staff to develop a letter of recommendation on this matter from the 
Commission to submit to the City Council sometime in November.  The next scheduled meeting for the Commission 
on Community Relations and Development will be held on December 8, 2020. 
 

• The Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met on October 7, 2020 at 5:00 pm for a regular session meeting and held an 
executive board meeting on October 19, 2020.  The next scheduled regular GYC meeting will be on December 2, 
2020.  Also, during the month of October the GYC members collected and provided non-perishable items towards 
the United Way Food Drive event.   
 

• The Department has worked with the nonprofits awarded through the Goldsboro’s Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
Program by first issuing all nonprofits with official award notifications.  This notification detailed the information 
needed to transition each nonprofits’ conditional offers for funding to an official contractual agreement along with 
ensuring Goldsboro maintain grant and finance compliance.  A total of seven contractual agreement have been 
executed by Goldsboro and forwarded to respective nonprofits for their execution. 
 

• The Department received seven (7) housing complaints and three (3) requests for assistance.  Description of said 
complaints were seven (7) substandard housing issues (electrical, plumbing, HVAC, bed bug infestation, and sewage) 
along with three (3) request for assistance with masks, housing, utilities, or food assistance related to COVID-19. 
Complaints were submitted through the Cityworks system or rerouted for resolution to the appropriate City 
Department, designated community agency, or State resource.   

Housing 2 2 1 3 4 2 5 3 4 7 3

Consumer & Other 2 2 10 7 0 6 9 5 4 3 5

Housing 1 4 5 2 2 4 2 2 2 1 1 0 2

Consumer & Other 3 4 3 4 3 4 6 1 4 0 4 2 3

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2019 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

2020 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep



 

 
 

1 

PARAMOUNT & GEC 
October 2020 
Prepared by:  Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared: 11/09/2020 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• October activity restricted by Executive Order; Phase-3 provides no change to theatres  
• October COVID-19 postponements/cancellations include: 11 rental days, 7 public perfs. 
• Created 5 Paramount concerts, executed 2 rescheduled events, and 2 as scheduled 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o HVAC leak repaired: $5716 in coolant added, savings in electricity expense expected 
o wheelchair lift repaired, operable, and inspected 
o Roofing; temporary repairs holding, permanent repairs in discussion with contractor 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

o Expenses –$23,883:     Labor -   $10,360 /Operational – $13,523    
o Revenues - $635:          Tickets -$535 /Rentals- $0 /Concession- $100  

 
--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 

• October activity restricted by Executive Ordered; Phase-3 allows capacity of 100 
• October COVID-19 related cancellations/postponements include 7 rental days 
• Executed first private events since Covid closure, a 2-day wedding rental 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o Weather damaged façade repair estimates being sought. 
o Minor roof leak repair estimates being sought. 
o Bookings strong in late-fall and spring; offering options for smaller events in larger spaces. 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
o Expenses – $7,931:  Labor -  $5,470 /Operational – $2,461 
o Revenues – $6,894:            Rentals - $6,326 /Concessions – $568 
o Value City Use – $0:   Value of non-revenue City use: = $0 

 

 July-20 Aug-20 Sept-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 April-21 May-21 June-21 2021 Total 2021 Average 

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931         $50,108 $12,527 

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894         $2,659 $665 

City $0 $0 $0 $0         $0 $0 
 July-19 Aug-19 Sept-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 April-20 May-20 June-20 2020 Total 2020 Average 

Exp $6,887 $10,356 $9,001 $13,055 $6,916 $13,636 $7,740 $21,673 $19,737 $9,130 $8,164 $7,677 $134,542 $11,212 

Rev $2,000 $8,369 $12,579 $7,439 $7,799 $11,371 $9,590 $7,825 $1,383 -$548 $1,916 $2,038 $73,799 $6,150 

City $2,075 $2,700 $4,700 $10,076 $6,483 $9,436 $6,800 $4,964 $375 $0 $0 $375 $47,984 $3,999 

 

 July-20 Aug-20 Sept-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 April-21 May-21 June-21 2021 Total 2021 Average 

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $11,774 $23,883         $96,857 $24,214 

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635         $2,865 $716 

 July-19 Aug-19 Sept-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 April-20 May-20 June-20 2020 Total 2020 Average 

Exp $21,916 $41,241 $43,600 $50,200 $32,374 $66,748 $61,859 $56,489 $65,545 $23,792 $113,559 $23,856 $598,037 $49,836 

Rev $8,423 $8,090 $7,824 $12,301 $16,740 $28,934 $83,453 $88,232 $27,544 $15,415 $43,468 $1,781 $289,574 $24,131 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Oct 2020 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 11/03/20 
 
The valuation of all miscellaneous (mechanical, gas, insulation, electrical, plumbing, fire, sprinkler, pool, tank, 
demolition, signs, business inspection, & itinerant merchant) permits issued during this time period totaled 
$5,578,670. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $37,330.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $2,955 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,225. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,280. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 625 inspections for the month.  During the month of October, seven (7) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 238 permits were issued for the month.   Thirty-one (31) plan reviews were 
completed for October.  Minimum Housing program moved to Planning Department. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
Permit Valu.
All Bldgs $ (M) $11 $2.3 $1.4 $3.8 $1.9 $7.0 $3.1 $9.1 $27.1 $1.7 $6.8
Residential $ (K) $2.6M $843 $435 $2.4M $858 $834 $575 $1.6M $375 $1.3 $1.2
Misc $ (M) $3 $3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.9 $1.6 $1.8 $1.7 $5.6 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $45 $48 $29 $38 $33 $53 $32 $47 $45 $37 $41
Inspections 597 351 612 430 474 502 619 532 709 625 545
Permits Issued 271 249 257 229 251 273 268 277 294 238 261
Plan Reviews 17 43 41 45 50 46 36 48 63 31 42
Min Housing 134 136 157 157 157 157
In Process

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
Permit Valu.
All Bldgs $ (M) $2 $14 $6 $428K $8 $2 $4 $11 $2 $3 $10 $4 $6
Residential $ (K) $805 $1M $599 $0 2M $767 $580 $557 $985 $514 $999 $1M $817
Misc $ (M) $5 $2 $2 $2 $2 $1 $3 $2 $1 $2 $1 $2 $2
Permit Fee $ (K) $34 $40 $48 $27 $46 $41 $38 $40 $26 $23 $46 $40 $37
Inspections 614 603 531 497 603 488 533 663 516 447 500 453 537
Permits Issued 296 296 270 271 334 296 329 255 226 248 236 241 275
Plan Reviews 39 47 65 46 34 43 90 35 51 70 45 34 50
Min Housing 171 99 102 118 121 125 126 111 121 129 128 129 123
      In Process





 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
October 2020  
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: October 09, 2020 
 

• Completed network connection to the Kiosk at The Hub. 
• Completed Banner testing in the test environment so we can move forward with Production. 
• Did Demo of Cityworks barcoding and storeroom with Public Utilities and upgraded Test Server. 
• Setup new server for GWTA and migrated devices to the new environment. Setup storage for 

cameras. 
• Replaced Garage laptop and City Clerk laptop. 
• Started Security Awareness Training Program. 
• Setup The Hub for the Public Art Installation Ceremony. 
• Restored Firehouse Server to recover form a failure. No lost date and a minimum amount of 

downtime. 
• Staff attended the Fall NCLGISA Virtual Symposium. Staff also assisted in planning the event. IT 

presented one session. Staff also attended Network Interop Virtual Conference. 
• Staff attended a Skydio Drone Demo at the NC Highway Patrol Training Center. 
• Setup cable boxes at Fire Station 4 and completed camera and access point installs at Station 1. 
• Restored GIS Servers SOM2 and Portal after major content issue. 
• Fixed Banner login issues. 
• Created 5 minute and 35 minute timers for City Council Meeting Public Comment Period. 
• Sit Rep is live in CoDa. 
• Tested Signal System Fiber to locate a break in the line. 
• Assisted vendor in setup for signal servers and connectivity for the Signal System. 

  
2020  JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
                
Tickets 
Opened 

 551 656 595 618 448 578 641 533 495 532   565 
 

5,647 

Tickets 
Closed 

 524 684 560 680 425 632 705 502 447 529   569 
 

5,688 

Open  
Tickets 

 511 483 518 456 479 425 361 392 440 443   451  

 
2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

662 536 546 519 540 424 686 708 545 734 475 441 568 6618 

Tickets 
Closed 

551 467 575 429 496 454 942 664 503 672 498 416 556 6667 

Open  
Tickets 

456 490 457 549 582 612 300 342 384 446 423 448 457 
 

 

 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
22.3 12.2 35.4 17.3 3.4 18.9 18.5 25.8 9.1 37.8 20.1
5.8 5.2 7.6 5.1 12.6 7.6 11.8 10.8 11.0 12.5 9.0
27 22 27 19 9 16 30 24 20 26 22.0
12 10 29 19 12 9 17 5 16 19 14.8
9 9 2 3 2 9 3 8 9 6 6.0
34 36 33 22 30 42 33 17 21 13 28.1

42 23 54 50 49 58 69 63 62 47 51.7
78 56 54 23 24 24 51 48 53 56 46.7
0 0 44 73 101.6 98 149 135 115 52 76.8
0 0 50 92 89 88 110 64 70 89 65.2

228 357 209 296 245 277 292 288 285 247 272.4
46$       67$       52$       60$       52$       56$       70$       53$       64$       52$       57.2

0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.999
103 79 93 88 88 88 117 18 62 107 84.3
0.4 0.7 0.1 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.673

5 3 9 4 2 6 5 5 6 6 5.1

0 0 18 29 10 24 26 26 34 15 18.2
49 83 30 28 35 50 64 30 17 39 42.5
48 112.3 66.2 128 123.1 142.7 145.7 138.3 68.2 93 106.6
0.08 0.50 0.05 1.73 2.07 6.96 0.70 4.71 0.15 0.08 1.702
0.00 0.00 0.00 2.51 1.17 12.27 6.12 11.30 1.52 2.28 3.717
1 7 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 3 4.5

8.7 8.0 9.8 13.5 11.6 6.0 7.3 24.2 15.6 11.1 9.8 5.2 10.9
10.8 11.3 9.8 8.6 11.9 1.6 6.3 14.3 10.2 13.8 5.7 1.9 8.9
27 20 16 28 19 30 34 26 37 27 17 22 25.3
31 7 9 34 10 18 22 10 44 38 27 25 22.9
37 16 19 10 16 3 17 13 8 40 13 19 17.6
102 63 56 47 54 52 57 51 35 35 24 25 50.1

260 219 202 193 333 234 204 324 49 59 34 33 178.7
48 72 48 29 32 67 47 25 35 18 25 41 40.6
10 0 0 70 83 110 124 107 103 35 0 0 53.5
0 0 0 81 75 105 114 106 98 32 0 0 50.9

365 309 276 316 255 298 298 397 289 323 273 207 300.5
61$       53$       55$       64$       56$       65$       66$       68$       61$       67$       55$       52$       60.3

1.0 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.9
13 78 83 87 95 99 103 79 62 105 85 92 81.8
0.8 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.6 0.7 0.7 1.1 0.7 0.7 1.1 0.8

4 4 7 5 6 1 8 3 2 4 8 2 4.5

15 12 10 11 9 12 14 13 3 21 0 0 10.0
56 49 52 18 15 20 18 19 17 7 32 55 29.8
110 143 135 16 103 64 35 45 49 109 79.2 63 79.3

1.26 3.85 1.27 1.1 0.45 1.6
6.05 10.52 8 7 7 7.7

5 6 4 2 0 3.4

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

ROW Mowing (ac)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2020

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

ROW Mowing (ac)
City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
October 2020
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared:  9 November 2020

2019

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Prepped and began installing Christmas lighting to include replacing 22 GFCI outlets for tree pedestals  
and putting up four blocks of tree lights down Center Street; Checked all downtown steet lights and converted four to LED; 
Repaired HVAC for Garage office; Replaced door loick set on WRF UV building; C ompleted 20 LED lighting upgrades as part 
of bulb replacements and converted six Emergency Lights to LED between the two locations of Public Works Complex and City 
Hall.
Distribution & Collections: Mowed outfall line easements in the following areas: N. Berkeley Blvd, Slocumb St, Forest Dr, 
Stuart St and Lake Shore Dr.; Call duty responded to 22after hour calls—total of 31 hours.
Streets & Storm water: Graded four unpaved streets; Removed blockages and select vegetation from conservation area by 
Astor Court, awaiting DEQ inspect before proceeding further with next phase; Regraded and removed blockages from four 
residential ditches/ culverts; cleared 2553 feet of vegetation overgrowth from curb and gutter along Isler and Roberts Street.



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
October 2020 
Prepared By: Michael Wagner 
Date Prepared: November 6, 2020 
 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o The plate settlers’ installation is ongoing. Basin #5, #6, & #7 are certified complete. 
o The Neuse River annual dredge is on hold, due to river levels. 
o New Hope Tank is offline for blasting and painting soon.     

 
Water Reclamation Facility 

• The Water Reclamation Facility operations are proceeding smoothly. The average daily flows for 
October were 9.84 MGD 

• All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117 and Little 
Cherry pump station bar screens. 

o The obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for an upgrade. 
 
Compost Facility 

• Eight-hundred and thirty cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in October 2020. 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 
 

2020 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.032 6.201 6.318 6.117 6.639 6.779 7.033 6.529 6.564 6.368   6.458 
Sewer** 9.71 13.45 9.95 8.60 10.11 12.33 10.36 12.83 10.00 9.84   10.72 
Compost 283 950 824 914 727 570 237 389 286 830   601 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2019 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.206 6.053 6.016 6.175 7.237 7.351 7.361 6.890 6.693 6.519 6.310 6.287 6.591 
Sewer** 11.66 11.76 12.22 11.01 7.84 8.28 7.39 6.83 7.48 6.73 6.92 8.52 8.88 
Compost 52 319 390 552 503 437 103 121 217 508 350 6 297 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
OCTOBER 2020 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: November 6, 2020 
 

 

FY 19-20
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues October-19 Adjusted Budget October-20 Collected
General Fund 9,172,569$      42,862,916$        5,934,829$      13.85%
Utility Fund 6,088,590        18,545,322          6,147,985        33.15%
Downtown District Fund 15,785             117,898               7,292               6.19%
Occupancy Tax Fund 413,785           1,199,844            346,473           28.88%
Stormwater Fund 513,729           1,775,600            512,308           28.85%
     Total 16,204,458$    64,501,580$        12,948,886$    20.08%

Expenditures
General Fund 13,914,073$    42,862,916$        12,639,690$    29.49%
Utility Fund 6,179,910        18,545,322 5,323,374 28.70%
Downtown District Fund 9,288               117,898 1,839               1.56%
Occupancy Tax Fund 271,202           1,199,844 142,889 11.91%
Stormwater Fund 307,670           1,775,600 336,133 18.93%
     Total 20,682,142$    64,501,580$        18,443,925$    28.59%

FY 19-20
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

October-19 Adjusted Budget October-20 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 3,801,526$      18,282,005$        1,333,500$      7.29%
Charges for Services 7,925,429        24,538,399          7,828,503        31.90%
Revenue Other Agencies 2,406,781        15,014,633          1,508,264        10.05%
Other Revenues 613,456           2,850,026            755,141           26.50%
Fund Balance -                   769,560               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 1,457,266        3,046,957            1,523,479        50.00%
     Total 16,204,458$    64,501,580$        12,948,886$    20.08%

Expenditures
Labor 9,231,457$      31,673,986$        9,207,031$      29.07%
Non-Labor 11,450,685      32,827,594          9,236,893        28.14%
     Total 20,682,142$    64,501,580$        18,443,925$    28.59%

FY 19-20 Actual Total 
Collections Actual October-20 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,538$           725$                     5,000$             
Surplus 57,818$           13,250$               41,746$           

OVERALL SUMMARY
FY 20-21

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 20-21

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
October 2020 
Prepared By: Debra Creighton 
Date Prepared: November 9, 2020 

During the month of September, the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial 
and residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings 
and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for 
GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas.    
On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports.  Code Enforcement issues $25.00 parking violation 
tickets within the downtown area or upon notification elsewhere in the City. During the month of 
October, four (4) tickets were issued.   

Parked in Wrong Direction 0 
Parked in Proximity to Fire Hydrant 1 

Parked in a Prohibited Area (No Parking Zone) 1 
Other (Bus Loading Zone, Crosswalk, Sidewalk) 2 

   
 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average 

Site/Subdivision Plans  

Planning 
Commission 2 4 2 3 2 1 3 3 2 1     20 2 

Staff Level 0 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 2 3     10 1 

  
Rezonings 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 3     10 1 

Historic District Commission 

Commission 
Review 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1     7 1 

Staff Review 1 0 1 2 2 1 0 2 2 2     13 1 

  
Code Enforcement  

Grass Cutting  
# Lots 0 0 0 36 53 28 82 119 53 124     495 71 

Grass Cutting  
Payments 0 0 0 $2,115 $3,025  $2,205  $4,025  $6,850  $2,870  $5,340     $26,430 $3,776 

Junk Vehicles 0 7 2 2 27 0 0 0 2 3     43 4 

Tagged Vehicles 0 43 7 47 2 5 25 50 26 21     226 23 

Illegal Signs 
Removed 0 0 143 67 13 38 80 900 24 44     1309 131 

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 292 2438 261 187 224 197 211 250 737 419     5216 522 

 



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
October 2020 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.  
Date Prepared:  11-09-2020 

Stoney Creek Greenway 
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600

linear feet; 
• Engineering and Planning staff have a meeting scheduled with NCDOT on November 12, 2020 for

project update. 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• This project is 95% complete;
• Staff is preparing punch list items for the contractor to complete rehab work;
• Subcontractors are onsite finishing up services and punch list work detailed by McKim & Creed;
• A final change order will be created to address overruns and underruns in the bid line items and

will be taken to City Council in December;
• Previous change orders amended the contract completion date to December 2020.

2019 Infrastructure Recovery (Golden Leaf Foundation) 
• This project consists of sewer rehabilitation and storm drainage improvements in various areas;
• This project is 95% complete;
• Remaining work includes installing a manhole on Grantham Street near Franklin Bakery and

flowable fill of the now abandoned sewer line that runs under the railroad at Ash Street;
• Final completion anticipated for December 2020.

2020 Street Improvements Project 
• This paving project includes:

1. Oak Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive;
2. East Chestnut Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street;
3. Hawthorne Street from Oleander Avenue to Andrews Avenue;
4. Mimosa Street from Claiborne Street to Randolph Street;

• Paving project is underway with contractor performing preliminary work on each street as follows:
Undercutting of Oak Hill Drive in preparation for proof roll and then stone;
Water line has been laid and one of the two tie-ins completed for East Chestnut Street;
Curb and gutter has been installed for most of Hawthorne Street;
Clearing on Mimosa Street has been completed.

• This project is 45% complete with a contract completion date of February 27, 2021.

2020 Street Resurfacing 
• Staff is working to develop a more detailed cost estimate to determine if additional street segments

can be added to include streets that were disturbed as part of the Phase IV Sewer Rehab Project; 



2 

• Once the detailed estimate is developed, staff will seek final approval from City Council prior to
advertising for bids in January 2021.

2020 Wastewater System Improvements - SJAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements – FB2020-003 
• City Council awarded a contract to Vortex Services, LLC on July 13th for $370,597.40;
• In addition to SJAFB Sanitary Sewer Outfall Improvements, this project includes Glen Oak Drive

Sanitary Sewer Outfall Connection;
• Notice to proceed date is set for December 1, 2020 with a contract completion date of March 26,

2021. 

2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002 
• City Council awarded a contract to AM-Liner East, Inc.  on May 4, 2020 for $502,287;
• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash

Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street;
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital
campus;

• Pre-CCTV work has been partially completed;
• This project is 5% complete;
• Contract completion date is March 24, 2021.

2017 Water System Improvements 
• This project consists of creating a separate pressure zone in the New Hope area by installing a

booster pump station at the New Hope Water Tank and a couple of pressure reducing valves at the 
extreme ends of the new pressure zone; 

• Design plans and specifications have been sent to NCDEQ for review in June 2020;
• Design plans and specifications are anticipated to be approved by NCDEQ by November/December

2020. 

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk 
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 
• Construction plans are 90% complete;
• Waiting on NCDOT to install handicap ramps along the project;
• Duke Energy has relocated conflicting poles;
• Engineering and Planning staff have requested a meeting with NCDOT to get an update on project

status.

Best Management Practices (BMPs) Inspections  
• Approximately 308 BMPs have been approved and 258 BMPS have been constructed to date;
• All BMP inspections completed through the month October 2020.



 
 

1 

2020 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.
Total Incidents: 198 187 166 111 118 208 213 213 233 203 185
Structure Fires: 10 4 2 1 4 4 2 2 6 2 4

EMS Calls: 70 81 73 7 21 74 89 68 80 88 65
Vehicle  Accidents: 35 22 26 25 26 29 27 42 34 34 30

Fire Alarms: 46 29 26 38 33 46 45 49 69 41 42
O ther: 37 51 39 40 34 55 50 52 44 38 44

Training Hours: 2969 3014 3138 2426 2289 2223 2351 2217 2444 2402 2547
Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 9 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 2

Inspections: 129 119 143 73 108 134 151 108 119 140 122
2019 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 196 191 203 209 241 207 215 199 223 235 227 209 213
Structure Fires: 5 3 2 4 1 1 4 2 1 10 3 3 3

EMS Calls: 72 84 79 76 76 79 75 74 68 84 78 85 78
Vehicle  Accidents: 27 30 40 33 39 27 22 36 33 38 36 32 33

Fire Alarms: 33 33 29 40 54 54 47 46 66 47 44 41 45
O ther: 59 41 53 56 71 46 67 41 55 56 66 48 55

Training Hours: 3122 3211 3263 1804 2128 1788 1885 2995 1757 2061 1963 1322 2275
Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 8 5 4 5 8 9 10 6 6 4 2 6

Inspections: 94 86 123 118 113 71 91 114 116 107 100 76 101

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
October 2020 
Prepared By: CL/JD 
Date Prepared: 11.6.2020 

Fire Prevention and Outreach 
 
 

October 4 – 10, 2020 is Fire Prevention Week. Theme: “Serve Up Fire Safety In The Kitchen.” 
• 10/1 – Public Education - Community Helper Walk-by – First Baptist Church – Station 1
• 10/3 – Community Service - Birthday Ride-by – 1300 Park Ave B
• 10/5, 10/9 – Public Education – Meadow Lane Elementary
• 10/6 – Public Education – Faith Christian Academy
• 10/6, 10/9 – Public Education – North Drive Elementary
• 10/6, 10/8 – Public Education – Carver Heights Elementary
• 10/7 – Public Education – Wayne Christian School
• 10/7 – Public Education – St Mary Catholic School
• 10/8 – Public Education – Wayne Country Day School
• 10/10 – Community Service - Kids Fest Parade – Berkeley Mall
• 10/10 – Community Service - Birthday Ride-by – 1100 Wessex Ct
• 10/17 – Community Service - Pastor Appreciation Parade – 409 W Hooks River Rd
• 10/25 – Community Service - Birthday Ride-by – Outback Steakhouse
• 10/28 – Community Service - Mobile Fall Festival Trunk or Treat
• 10/29 – Community Service - Birthday Ride-by – 115 Courtney Rd
• 10/31 – Community Service – Trick or Treat – Station 4

Working Structure Fires
• 10/17 – 304 Daniel Dr.
• 10/27 – 1211 Wayne Mem Dr. Apt D

 

 
 

 Working Vehicle Fires 
• None

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 



1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
October 2020 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West         
Date Prepared:  November 4, 2020  

Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for October 2020 were 174, compared to 199 for October 2019. 

Property with an estimated value of $169,207 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $23,690 was recovered. 

Officers arrested 114 people and issued 300 citations during the month. There were 18 drug-related 
charges.  

There were zero report(s) of assaults on officers. 

Revenue collected for October 2020 included: 

Police Reports $  326.00 
Fingerprints $   20.00 
Special Events $  25.00 

         Total $  371.00 

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 

Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0  1  0  0 2 .2 
Rape 1 1 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 3 0 0 11 1.1 
Robbery 5 7 2 0 4 6 4 5 1 4 0 0 38 3.8 
Aggravated Assault 11 12 14 9 9 19 25 20 28 23 0 0 170 17 
Breaking & Entering 29 27 21 23 18 27 30 36 25 25 0 0 261 26.1 
Larceny 112 122 113 97 79 104 108 136 94 113 0 0 1078 107.8 

Motor Vehicle Theft 9 8 7 6 6 11 6 10 7 5 0 0 75 7.5 
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 .2 
TOTALS 166 177 157 136 116 168 178 209 155 174 0 0 1637 163.7 

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 

Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0  0  0  0 2 0.2 
Rape 1 0 0 2 1 0 2 1 0  0  1  1 7 0.7 
Robbery 6 4 5 4 5 1 3 5 4  4  4  6 41 4.1 
Aggravated Assault 7 8 10 5 15 14 9 10 13  16  10  14 107 10.7 
Breaking & Entering 33 31 24 35 35 22 34 25 30  30  26  30 299 29.9 
Larceny 157 92 104 135 99 138 134 138 127  142  116  113 1266 126.6 

Motor Vehicle Theft 7 9 11 8 5 7 6 7 9 7   11  6 76 7.6 
Arson 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0 1 0.1 

TOTALS 211 145 154 189 160 184 191 186 183 199 168 170 1799 179.9 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
October - 2020 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared - 11/05/2020 
• Goldsboro Golf Course – Hosted 2 High School Matches & 5 Golf Tournaments including the 1st Annual City Championship. 
• Bryan MSCX – Hosted the Carolina Champions League Tournament on October 10th and the SJAFB Family Day on October 30th.  
• “Ride the City” was held on October 17th that included over 120 participants.  50-60 participants received FREE helmets from the NCDOT Bicycle 

Helmet Initiative. 
• “Big Cat Tournament” was held on October 3rd with 44 participants registered for this event. 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center               
Program Revenue $2,361 $3,933 $336 $0 $0 $0 $20 $0 $20 $275   $695 

Rental Revenue  $260 $1,225 $1,240 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $235   $296 

Facility Usage 418 1,082 267 0 0 0 0 0 36 97   190 

Expenditures $4,257 $5,205 $2,542 $2,270 $1,388 $641 $188 $910 $2,608 $2,593   $2,260 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $10 $5 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70 $195   $30 

Rental Revenue $975 $1,563 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 $3,048   $775 

Facility Usage 4,050 3,604 605 0 0 0 0 0 30 150   844 

Expenditures $10,396 $8,788 $5,335 $2,833 $3,216 $3,732 $2,980 $1,749 $2,781 $5,069   $4,688 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460   $46 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   0 

Facility Usage 354 339 197 0 0 0 0 0 0 126   102 

Expenditures $2,020 $2,164 $1,173 $40 $226 $58 $0 $165 $300 $694   $684 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $280 $201 $157 $0 $0 $3,469 $5,425 $1,859 $352 $140   $1,188 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 

Facility Usage 1,144 1,532 674 0 33 1,107 2,772 1,398 205 104   897 

Expenditures $2,223 $2,380 $7,343 $4,686 $1,961 $12,588 $21,173 $12,077 $6,149 $1596   $7,218 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $3,262 $5,000 $5,080 $0 $0 $2,420 $1,725 $195 $1,200 $400   $1,928 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $700 $5,010 $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $750   $766 

Facility Usage 12,865 17,845 6,585 300 644 1,522 3,425 3,724 5,130 9,781   6,182 

Expenditures $6,663 $14,564 $11,999 $13,607 $38,561 $7,269 $13,661 $9,689 $7,792 $9,321   $13,313 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $42,254 $16,420 $48,796 $55,207 $61,268 $50,249 $71,304 $46,781 $61,011 $59,039   $51,233 

Expenditures $44,862 $23,671 $55,861 $43,212 $42,815 $165,446 $32,993 $43,191 $41,328 $33,101   $52,648 

Rounds of Golf 973 557 1,421 1,805 2,227 2,158 2,137 1,867 1,930 1,871   1,695 

Net - $2,608 $-7,251 -$7,065 $11,995 $18,454 -$115,197 $38,311 $3,589 $19,683 $25,938   -$1,415 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300   $30 

Participation 0 0 130 0 0 0 0 0 0 175   31 

Expenditures $332 $0 $292 $34 $0 $288 $110 $0 $0 $2,132   $319 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $50,102 $33,357 $57,724 $55,207 $61,268 $56,138 $78,474 $48,835 $63,913 $64,842 $ $ $56,986 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $569,860 



 

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost and facility operational cost but do not include full-time labor  

cost, loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of these costs 
are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 

 
 
 

2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park               
Program Revenue $1,805 $3045 $1,826 $2,928 $3,225 $7,242 $16,676 $8,574 $690 $1,141 $412 $452 $4,001 
Rental Revenue  $860 $1,390 $2,455 $1,770 $2,270 $3,490 $2,765 $2,545 $1,140 $1,470 $1,105 $1,210 $1,873 
Facility Usage 1,735 2,126 1,691 1,788 1,901 1,694 1,568 2,013 868 985 655 595 1,468 
Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $22,141 $8,837 $5,666 $4,724 $2,564 $5,692 $8,271 
              
WA Foster Rec Center              
Program Revenue $200 $1,180 $160 $205 $300 $2,890 $4,695 $3,235 $90 $40 $30 $50 $1,090 
Rental Revenue $350 $1,275 $350 $1,100 $4,600 $1,600 $1,200 $2,830 $1,180 $1,200 $1,135 $837 $1,471 
Facility Usage 7899 7,848 8,320 7,525 9,663 8,624 7,452 5,007 2,570 5,081 5,526 4,729 6,687 
Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $32,727 $18,189 $9,745 $10,914 $10,025 $11,261 $15,477 
              
Specialized Recreation              
Program Revenue --- $102 $94 --- --- --- ---- $230 --- --- --- --- $36 
Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Facility Usage 413 388 467 348 1,675 277 368 562 365 459 516 150 499 
Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $1,851 $2,436 $1,001 $2,641 $4,306 $590 $2,138 
              
Senior Programs & Pools              
Program Revenue $242 $264 $277 $309 $2,396 $6,124 $7,939 $2,621 $2,415 $309 $249 $205 $1,946 
Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- $550 $425 $375 --- --- --- --- $338 
Facility Usage 1,532 1,723 1,674 3,097 2,517 4,920 5,825 3,161 1,283 1,520 1,440 871 2,464 
Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $20,542 $13,897 $2,682 $1,645 $1,842 $2,046 $7,109 
              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              
Program Revenue $5,206 $3,573 $8451 $2,229 $12,128 $11,459 $4,963 $6,487 $9,366 $23,044 $16,866 $5,441 $9,101 
Field / Shelter Rental $ $1,600 $150 $610 $890 $1,250 $1,480 $1,300 $795 $1,755 $898 $1,085 $2,438 $1,188 
Facility Usage 15,250 14,340 13,150 20,470 42,520 27,285 11,372 8,245 17,022 $29,693 23,738 19,500 20,215 
Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $13,842 $8,892 $19,005 $54,041 $26,867 $34,307 $26,159 
              
Golf Course              
Revenues $43,326 $22,930 $28,167 $52,962 $55,502 $65,797 $68,373 $49,754 $52,843 $60,173 $20,031 $35,203 $46,255 
Expenditures $33,159 $44,676 $47,976 $41,149 $41,387 $71,439 $43,750 $60,039 $44,984 $39,426 $30,373 $35,486 $44,487 
Rounds of Golf 808 1,088 1,741 1,799 2,528 2,812 2,511 2,659 2,316 2,139 985 1,124 1,876 
Net $10,167 $21,746 $19,809 $11,813 $14,115 $5,642 $24,623 $10,285 $7,859 $20,747 $10,342 $203 $1,775 
              
Special Events              
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1.450 $1,990 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $166 
Participation 0 0 125 3,000 0 180 256 60 40 2680 0 2500 737 
Expenditures --- --- --- --- --- --- $2,345 --- $1,305 $1,538 $510 $3,707 $784 
              
TOTAL REVENUE $53,589 $33,810 $42,390 $62,393 $81,671 $102,082 $109,901 $77,446 $69,479 $88,275 $40,913 $45,836 $67,315 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             
$807,785 

 



1 

Travel and Tourism 
October 2020 
Prepared By: Ashlin Glatthar and Amber Herring 
Date Prepared: 11/9/20 

• Total hotel revenue generated in September was $1,839,167, which is down

-7.8% YOY. October revenue not yet released.

• For the month, TTO Facebook page had 249 new page likes. Instagram page

has 36 new followers. Twitter page gained 6 new followers.

• TTO has a talented, new Communications & Creative Services manager to

help achieve the marketing goals and objectives of the department that

ultimately drive visitation to Goldsboro-Wayne County.

• In addition to the awarded $21,000 of marketing credit in September, TTO

has received an additional $57,000 in Marketing Credit (not actual cash)

to use with Visit NC’s Marketing Co-Op Recovery Program geared towards

helping NC tourism destinations recover from the impacts of Covid-19. The

credit will be used for digital marketing programs like Social Media,

Digital Outdoor Advertising in the RDU area, YouTube Advertising, and

Connected TV commercials (streaming services, such as Roku, Apple, Amazon

Fire).

• TTO applied for and was successfully awarded with $15,000 of federal

grant funding to assist the promotion to help the visitor economy of

Goldsboro-Wayne County recover from the impacts of Covid-19. Funding was

made available through NC House Bill 1023.

• TTO submitted a proposal to be the new host for Raleigh LaxFest, which

has become one of the largest youth lacrosse tournaments on the east

coast. On October 15, 2020, TTO was notified that Goldsboro’s Bryan

Multi-Sports Complex would be the new host location for this major

tournament. The event is expected to generate $300,000 economic impact to

our local economy.

• The Ghost Tour series for the month of October was a success with every

tour sold out.



• TTO worked with partners from NC Freedom Fest, DGDC, US Quidditch, and

sister departments in various capacities for upcoming projects, events,

and opportunities.

  City Occupancy Tax Collections 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $300,141 $75,036 

2019-20 $82,004 $88,424 $92,348 $85,480 $81,911 $72,631 $61,017 $71,071 $73,114 $54,362 $38,523 $54,254 $855,139 $71,262 



O



ORDINANCE NO. 2020- 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT 

MISCELLANEOUS GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (R1106)  

WHEREAS, Congress adopted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act (P.L. 116-136) established the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) on March 27, 2020 which 
included over $4 billion in aid to the State of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2020 HB 1105, Coronavirus Relief Act 3.0 was signed into law by 
Governor Cooper; and 

WHEREAS, HB 1105 allocates $19.85 million for qualifying Community Based Organizations 
(CBO’s) across the state to apply for grants for federal COVID-relief funding; and 

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2020, City of Goldsboro’s Parks & Recreation Department has 
heretofore found it in the public interest to apply for federal grant funding to fund supplies, 
equipment, and staff time related to remote learning to adapt to the changes as a result of COVID-
19; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Parks and Recreation received notification on October 15, 
2020 of being awarded the amount requested of $94,616; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted a resolution on November 2, 
2020 accepting the grant award in the amount of $94,616 which stipulates the period of 
performance is from July 29, 2020 through December 30, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures in order to begin fulfilling the terms of 
the grant, and this will be funded with federal grant revenue. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act Miscellaneous 
Grants Special Revenue Fund (R1106) be amended as follows: 

Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act Miscellaneous Grants (R1106)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Grants 15,000.00$           109,616.00$          94,616.00$   
Total Revenues 15,000.00$           109,616.00$          94,616.00$   

Expenditures:
Other Expenses - Marketing Campaign 15,000.00$           15,000.00$            -$            
Other Expenses - Remote Learning Grant P&R - 94,616.00              94,616.00     

Total Expenditures 15,000.00$           109,616.00$          94,616.00$   

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2020. 

______________________________ 

Chuck Allen 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 





P













Q













Item R


	Agenda 11-16-20
	Item A Minutes 11 02 20
	Item B-1  Kathy Hill Retirement Resolution
	Item D Z-9-20 Agenda Memo
	Item D-2 Z-9-20 maps
	Item E Z-10-20 Agenda Memo
	Item E-2 Z-10-20 
	Item F-1 Public Hearing - Jefferson Court
	Item F-4 Public Hearing Notice - Jefferson
	Item G-1 Day Point Resolution Item.docx
	Item H Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance - CDBG
	Item I Upset Bid 422 
	Item J FInal Award Upset Bid 619&621
	Item K-1 NC Tourism Promotion Recovery Grant Item
	Item K-2 RESOL Accept NC Tourism Promotion Recovery Grant Oct 2020
	Item L 2020 BC Meetings Memo 
	Item M-1 2020 Council Meeting Memo
	Item M-2 Proposed Council Meeting Dates for 2021
	Item N Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item N-1 Human Resources Monthly Report
	Item N-2 CR Monthly Report
	Item N-3 Paramount_GEC Monthly Report
	Item N-4 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item N-5 Downtown Monthly Report
	Item N-6 Information Technology Monthly Report
	Item N-7 Public Works Monthly Report
	Item N-8 Public Utilities Monthly Report
	Item N-9 Finance Monthly Report
	Item N-10 Planning Monthly Report
	Item N-11 Engineering Monthly Report
	Item N-12 Fire Monthly Report
	Item N-13 Police Monthly Report
	Item N-14 Parks and Recreation Monthly Report
	Item N-15 Tourism Monthly Report
	Item O R1106 CARES Misc SRF Amend 
	Z-8-20 – Jones Sawmill-Northwest corner of Belfast Road & I-795-Second Reading
	Item P z-8-20 Agenda Memo - Second Reading 
	Item Q CU620 Agenda Memo - second reading 
	Item R Small Business Saturday Proclamation



